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Three CC Students named to 2024 All-Washington Academic
Team

Centralia College has named three students to the 2024 All-Washington Academic Team. Each All-
Washington Academic Team member will receive a medallion and a $217 scholarship from KeyBank.
Additionally, students who choose to attend Washington State four-year colleges and universities are
eligible to receive transfer scholarships ranging from $1,000 to $12,000.

All 92 of the state’s All-Washington Academic Team members were formally at a ceremony Thursday,
April 25, at South Puget Sound Community College in Olympia. Governor Jay Inslee was the keynote
speaker and presented the awards. He declared April 25 as All Washington Academic Team Day in the
state.

In addition, CC's representatives will be recognized at the May 9 meeting of the Centralia College
Board of Trustees.

Maya Hankins, 17, of Morton, is a Running Start student who works part time
% in a civil construction firm, where she discovered a passion for engineering and
construction management. In her free time, she is the chapter officer for the
Mossyrock Future Farmers of America and she volunteers with her local garden
club.

She is dedicated to her neighbors and spent almost a year assisting and raising funds for an elderly
neighbor who transitioned to a care facility. She plans to transfer to Central Washington University in
the fall to study engineering and construction management.

At the ceremony on April 25, it was announced that Maya is the #1 ranked student in the state. She
received a number of additional scholarships, including:

$5,000 All-USA Award

$2,250 New Century Transfer Scholar award

$1,000 Washington State ACT (Association of College Trustees) award
$750 WSECU Top 16 award

Van Nguyen, 48, of Centralia, immigrated from Vietnam in 2019 seeking better
opportunities for herself and her children. She enrolled at Centralia College to
study business. She will finish her associate degree in June and will start her
bachelor's degree at Centralia College in fall. In addition to raising children and
earning her degree, she is a student worker on campus and she volunteers at
Health and Hope Medical Outreach helping low-income individuals access
healthcare resources. She is a first-generation college student.




Valerie Varner, 37, of Centralia, worked in the real estate industry since she was
18. The job paid well, but it was always just a job. When she had a disabled child,
her world changed and she realized what she was meant to do. She is working
towards her associate degree and plans to become a registered nurse.

She wants to work in pediatrics and ensure children and parents receive high
quality, compassionate care. She is a first-generation college student. She will complete her nursing
degree this fall.

The All-Washington Academic Team program recognizes and honors the state's finest higher
education students. To qualify for the All-Washington Academic Team, students must be part of the
Phi Theta Kappa, the international honor society for two-year colleges. All-Washington Academic
Team members will also be ranked at a national level, with a chance to be included in the All-USA
Academic Team.

CC Foundation names the 2024 Exceptional Faculty Award
Winners

The Centralia College Foundation has selected Kelly
Erickson and Rachel Bryant-Anderson to receive the
2024 Exceptional Faculty Awards. They were chosen
for their commitment to and excellence in their
subject areas, and participation in campus activities.

Rachel Bryant-Anderson




Letter from the President

CENTRALIA
(: () L L E (; E 600 CENTRALIA COLLEGE BLVD - CENTRALIA WA - 98531 - 360-736-9391 - WWW.CENTRALIAEDU
PRESIDENT S OFFICE

May 8, 2025

Annalee Tobey, Board Chair
Board of Trustees

Centralia College

Centralia, WA 98531

Dear Chair Tobey:

We are proud to continue the tradition of submitting our 2024 Annual Financial Report of Centralia College
to the Board of Trustees. Management assumes full responsibility for the content and accuracy of this
report.

The College finished the financial statements according to the NWCCU accreditation standards which
require our financial reporting to be done within 15 months after year end close. The College was able to
produce a financial report in keeping with the college’s goals for sustainable and responsible budgeting
and fiscal accountability and stay in compliance with the NWCCU standards.

Qur 2024 report serves as a reminder of the responsibility we have as stewards of public resources to
undergo a financial audit which provides the public confidence in our management of college and state
resources. The State Auditor’s Office (SAQ) has issued another clean (unmodified) opinion on the College’s
financials. The Management Discussion and Analysis, which follows the State Auditor's Office
Independent Audit Opinion Letter, provides the reader with a better understanding of the financial
position and result of operation for the College’s most recent fiscal year.

We hope you find this report useful and that it helps to provide a full picture of the fiscal health of Centralia

College.
Sincerely,
Bob Mohrbacher Tariq Qureshi
Bob Mohrbacher, President Tarig Qureshi, VP, Finance & Administration
f )
Signature: qu’iﬁ:}:{f’fﬁ ?qﬁﬁf‘g — Signature: 751.3" Glesaade

Email: bob.mohrbacher@centralia.edu Email: tariq.qureshi@centralia.edu
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements

Office of the Washington State Auditor Pat McCarthy

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Board of Trustees
Centralia College
Centralia, Washington

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the Centralia College as of and for the year then ended June 30, 2024,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented
component units of the Centralia College, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Centralia College Foundation (the Foundation), which represent
100 percent of the assets, net position and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units.
Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely on the reports of other auditors.
The Financial Statements of the Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the College and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Matters of Emphasis
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Centralia College, an agency of the state of Washington,

are intended to present the financial position, and the changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash
flows of only the respective portion of the activities of the state of Washington that is attributable to the
transactions of the College and its aggregate discretely presented component units. They do not purport to, and
do not, present fairly the financial position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2023, the changes in its
financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2024, the College changed the measurement date used for
reporting their participation in the State Board Retirement Plan. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.



Performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards includes the
following responsibilities:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements;

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time; and

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information

The other information comprises the College Success Stories, Letter from the President,
and Board of Trustees and Administrative Officers, but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other
information included in the financial statements. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance thereon.

In connection with the audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected
material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our
report.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report dated June 3,
2025, on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sincerely,

Cﬁﬁzﬁ(éf

Pat McCarthy, State

Auditor Olympia, WA

June 3, 2025



Management Discussion & Analysis

Centralia College

The objective of this Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to help readers of
Centralia College’s financial statements better understand the financial position and
operating activities for the year ended June 30, 2024 with comparative information for
the year ended June 30, 2023. This discussion has been prepared by management and
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes
which follow this section. Unless otherwise stated, all years refer to the fiscal year ended
June 30th.

The Centralia College financial report communicates financial information for Centralia
College and its’ discretely presented component unit, the Centralia College Foundation.
The College is an agency of the State of Washington, and the financial information
contained in this report is included in the State of Washington's Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) for FY24.

Reporting Entity

Centralia College is one of 30 community and technical college districts in the State of
Washington overseen by the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges
(SBCTC). The College is governed by a Board of five Trustees, which has broad
responsibilities to supervise, coordinate, manage and regulate the College as provided
by state law. Trustees are appointed by the Governor for a term of five years, with
consent of the Senate.

The College offers associate degrees and certificates in various programs and five
baccalaureate degrees in Applied Science.

The College is the oldest continuously operating two-year public college in the State of
Washington, established in 1925 and currently averages approximately 4,419 full-time
and part-time students per academic year. The College’s main campus is located in
Centralia, and serves Lewis and south Thurston counties with a population of
approximately 90,000, and has a satellite campus in Morton.

Using the Financial Statements

The College reports as a special purpose government, engaged in business-type
activities as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public
Colleges and Universities, as amended. Under this model, the financial report includes
three financial statements, the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows. These financial



statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted accounting standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The full scope of the
College’'s activities is considered a single business-type activity and accordingly, is
reported within a single column in the basic financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units requires a college to report an organization that raises and holds economic
resources for the direct benefit of a government unit. Under this requirement, the
Centralia College Foundation is a component unit of the College and their financial
statements are discretely presented into this financial report.

The College’s Financial Position

The statement of net position provides information about the College's financial
position at the end of the fiscal year. It displays all of the College’s assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows. The difference between assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows is net position.

The College’s FY24 overall net position increased by $1.9 million when compared to
FY23 primarily due to an increase of 1.8 million in total assets.

A condensed comparison of the Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2024 and
2023 follows:



Condensed Statement of N et Positdon

AsofJune 30 (in thousands) 2024 2023
Asszels
Capital assets_net 8580 87.123
Other assets 28192 25,083
Total Assets 114016 112206
Deferred Outflows of Resources 5770 5.570
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 15,290 14,787
Other Habilities 4,864 4.219
Total Liabilities 20,154 19 006
Deferred Inflows of Resources 10931 11,982

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital A ssets 83565 84 738

Festricted 3588 3,40

Unrestricted (deficit) 1.548 (1,351)
Total Net Positon h 28701 h 26,788

Capital assets including land and construction in progress decreased by a net of $1.3
million in 2024. Major factors include a construction in progress net increase of $398K
resulting from increases from construction costs of $1.44 million, primarily for the
renovation of the student apartment building, and the completion of the Electrical
Infrastructure project and the Walnut Street Storage Compound project which moved
$1.04 million of construction in progress to infrastructure. Infrastructure - improvement
other than buildings increased $1.02 million, net of depreciation, with the capitalization
of the Electrical Infrastructure project and the Walnut Street Storage Compound.
Buildings decreased $2.5 million primarily due to depreciation expense as well as the
removal of the building door project incorrectly capitalized in a previous year. More
information on the College’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 to the financial
statements.

Other assets, which includes current and non-current assets, increased by $3.1 million.
Current assets consist of cash, investments, accounts receivable and inventories. The
$1.87 million increase in current assets from FY23 to FY24 was the result of: 1) Cash
decreased $426K. Cash can fluctuate from year to year. 2) The current investments
decreased by $491K as bonds moved from non-current to current investments. This is a
natural progression of our investment strategy of laddering the purchase of new bonds.
3) Accounts receivable can fluctuate from year to year but did see an increase of $2.72
million primarily due to the timing of several billings including Running Start $1.35



million, ECEAP $358K, Foundation $349K, PELL $325K, and various grant billings totaling
$219K.

Non-current assets, other than the net capital assets, increased by $1.2 million in FY24.
This increase is largely a result a new long term lease receivable of $531K. There was
also an increase of $426K in net pension asset for the state retirement systems for the
PERS 2/3 and TRS 2/3 plans, an increase in investments of $654K in U.S. Government
sponsored enterprise bonds as part of the College investment procedure, a decrease in
restricted cash of $301K and a decrease in leased assets, net of amortization of $71K.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources represent deferrals in
pension and postemployment benefits related to GASB Statement No. 68 and Statement
No. 75. The increase in deferred outflows reflect the College’s proportionate share of the
state-wide amounts reported by the Department of Retirement System (DRS) and

Health Care Authority (HCA) due to differences between expected and actual experience
related to the actuarial assumptions. The College recorded $5.57 million in FY23 and
$5.77 million in FY24 of pension and postemployment-related deferred outflows.
Deferred Outflows also increased because of the change in reporting of the SBRP plan
to a one-year lag between measurement and reporting as allowed by GASB 68. For
FY24, $855K was recorded in deferred outflows.

Similarly, the $1.05 million decrease in deferred inflows in FY24 reflects the difference
between actual and projected investment earnings on the state’s pension plans and
other postemployment benefits and also includes lease receivables. The College
recorded $11.98 million in FY23 and $10.93 million in FY24 of pension and
postemployment-related deferred inflows.

Other liabilities include accounts payable, accrued payroll, the current portion of
Certificate of Participation (COP) debt, and associated liabilities and unearned revenues.
Current liabilities can fluctuate from year to year depending on the timeliness of vendor
invoices and resulting vendor payments, especially in the area of capital assets and
improvements. Current liabilities increased for FY24 by $645K, primarily from an
increase in accrued liabilities of $841K and a decrease in accounts payable of $206K.

Long-term liabilities are made up of OPEB and pension liabilities, vacation and sick leave
balances, and the long-term portion of Certificate of Participation (COP) debt and lease
payable. The $503K increase in non-current liabilities is primarily attributed to OPEB
liability. The main differences from FY23 to FY24 are a $634K increase in total OPEB
liability and a $131K decrease in net pension liability. Compensated absences increased
by $203K while leases and COP debt decreased by $202K.



Net position represents the difference between the College’s assets plus deferred
outflows, less liabilities and deferred inflows, and measures whether the financial
condition has improved or worsened during the year. The College reports its net
position in three categories:

Net Investment in capital assets — The College’s total investment in property,
plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt
attached to its capital assets. To the extent of restricted cash and cash
equivalents for capital projects collected, but not yet spent, these amounts are
not included as a component of capital assets, instead are included as a
component of restricted net position, expendable described below.

Net Investment in capital assets — The College’s total investment in property,
plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt
attached to its capital assets. To the extent of restricted cash and cash
equivalents for capital projects collected, but not yet spent, these amounts are
not included as a component of capital assets, instead are included as a
component of restricted net position, expendable described below.

Unrestricted net position — These represent all the other resources available to
the College for general and educational obligations to meet expenses for any
lawful purpose. Unrestricted net position is not subject to externally imposed
stipulations; however, the College has designated the majority of the unrestricted
net position for various academic and support functions. Prudent balances are
maintained for use as working capital, as a reserve against emergencies and for
other purposes, in accordance with policies established by the Board of Trustees.

Condensed Net Position

A s of June 30 (in thousands) 2024 2023
Net Investment in capital assets 5 83.563 § 84,738
Restricted
Expendable Net Pension Asset 22m 1,846
Expendable Other 1314 1,355
Unre stricte d { deficit) 1,548 (1,351}
Total Net Position 'S 88701 'S 86788

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides
information about the details of the changes in the net position of the College. The



statement classifies revenues and expenses as either operating or non-operating.
Generally, operating revenues are revenues that are earned by the College in exchange
for providing goods or services. Operating expenses are defined as expenses incurred
in the normal operation of the College, including a provision for the depreciation of
property and equipment assets. The difference between the operating revenues and
operating expenses, will always result in an operating loss since the College’s state
operating appropriations, and Federal Pell grant revenues are shown as non-operating
revenues as required by the GASB.

A summary of the College’s Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, follows:

Centralia College
Condensed S tatement of Reverues, Expenses, and Changes in N et Position

2024 2023
Operating Revenues
Student tuition and fees, net 3 3,187 % 3414
A uxiliary enterprise sales 1134 038
Grants and contracts 18,764 16,877
Other operating revenues 173 153
Total operating revenues 23 258 21382
Non-Operating Revenues
State approprations 20,153 18,708
Federal Pell grant revenue 3564 2643
Federal non-operating revenue 0 3016
Othernon-operating revenues 1314 138
Total non-operating revenues 25,030 25405
Total revenmes 48 288 46.787
Operating Expens es
Salanies and Benefits 20,432 27434
Scholarships 4945 4975
Diepraciation 31 29353
Other operating expenses 2790 0478
Total operating expenszes 46,269 44 840
Non-Operating Fxpenszes
Building fee remitt ance 674 38
Other non-operating expenses 220 263
Total non-operating expens es 1554 844
Total expenses 47 823 45684
Excess before capital contributions 465 1,103
Capital appropriations and contributions 1447 3588
Changein NetPosition 1912 4,691
Net Position
Net position_beginning of year 86.788 282097

NetPosition, end of year % 88,701 § 86,788




Operating and Non-Operating Revenues

State operating appropriations, tuition and fees (net of scholarship discounts and
allowances), and grants and contracts, are the primary sources for funding the College’s
academic programs.

Revenues

The state of Washington appropriates funds to the community college system as a
whole. The State Board for Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC) then allocates
monies to each college. In FY24, the SBCTC allocated funds to each of the 34 colleges
based on three-year average FTE actuals. This method of allocation will continue in
FY25.

State supported enroliments increased 11% or 141 FTE-S (full time equivalent students)
in FY24. In addition, the tuition rate increased 3.69%. Despite these increases tuition and
fees slightly decreased by a net of $227K due to the increase in state and federal
student aid. Enrollments have been continuing to slowly increase after the sharp
decrease attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic. Pell grant, as well as auxiliary
enterprise sales, revenues generally follow enrollment trends. The College’s enroliment
increased during FY24, and these revenue sources showed increases as well.

In 2024, grant and contract operating revenues increased by $1.89 million when
compared 2023. In FY24, state and local grants and contracts revenue increased by
$1.73 million while federal grants and contracts revenue showed little change when
compared to FY23. For state and local grants and contracts, the main changes were
increases of $362K in ECEAP, $234K from the Chehalis SAI Project, $824K in Running
Start, $118K in Opportunity Grant CTS, and $401K for Washington College Grant. In
addition, there were decreases of $190K for the Early ECEAP grant, $125K for the BS-
Computer Science contract, $281K for Running Start ESSER grant and $253K for the
Cedar Creek contract. The rest of the net increase in state and local grants and contract
revenue is made up of several smaller increases and decreases.

Total non-operating revenues decreased by $375K when compared to FY23. In FY24,

state appropriations revenue increased $1.45 million. Pell increased $921K while HEERF
funding for student aid and institutional expenses related to COVID-19 decreased $3.92
million as a result of the program ending. Investment income increased by $1.18 million.

The College receives capital spending authority on a biennial basis and may carry
unexpended amounts forward into one or two future biennia, depending on the original



purpose of the funding. In accordance with accounting standards, the amount shown as
capital appropriation revenue is the amount expended in the current year. Capital
appropriation revenue decreased $2.14 million in FY24 compared to FY23. Expenses
from capital project funds that do not meet accounting standards for capitalization are
reported as operating expenses. Those expenses that meet the capitalization standard
are not shown as expense in the current period and are instead recognized as
depreciation expense over the expected useful lifetime of the asset.

The following illustration showing revenue by source, both operating and non-operating
used to fund the College’s programs for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, in
percentage terms.

2024 REVENUES BY SOURCE

Auxiliary Student tuition
enterprise sales _ _arld fees, net
2% | . 6%

State operating
appropriations
41%

" Other revenues
3%

Capital
appropriations 2023 REVENUES BY SOURCE
F3% Student tuition and
Puniliary enterprise fees, net State
sales — T operating
% : appropriations

I37%

Other
revenues
0%

Capital
appropriations
T%

Operating Expenses

For FY24, the College saw an increase of $1.43 million in total operating expenses.
Salary costs increased $1.8 million with COLA salary increases of 4% for staff and 8.9%
for faculty, increased adjunct faculty, less vacant staff positions as well as the conversion
of part time hourly positions to full time to comply with the new Washington state law.



The net $193K increase in benefit costs was primarily a result of the benefits associated
with the increase in salaries but was reduced by the $194K increase in pension and OPEB
expense adjustments. Other operating expenses saw a decrease of $688K. The decrease
was primarily a result of an $803K decrease in repairs and maintenance from capital
appropriation funded projects, a $573K decrease in computers and related hardware,
and increases in other goods of $415K and in training of $204K. The rest of the net
decrease in other operating expenses is made up of several smaller increases and
decreases.

Salaries and wages, employee benefits, scholarships, fellowships and other aid, and

other are the major support costs for the College’s programs, followed by supplies
materials and services, depreciation and utilities.

Operating Expenses Comparison, by Natural Classification

Salaries and Employee Supplies, Scholarships, Depreciation Utilities Other
Wages benefits materials & fellowships &
services other aid

LULG £ULD

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activities

The community and technical college system submits a single prioritized request to the
Office of Financial Management and the Legislature for appropriated capital funds,
which includes major projects, minor projects, repairs, emergency funds, alternative
financing and major leases. The primary funding source for college capital projects is
state general obligation bonds. In recent years, declining state revenues significantly
reduced the state’s debt capacity and are expected to continue to impact the number of
new projects that can be financed.

At June 30, 2024, the College had invested $85.82 million in capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation. This represents a decrease of $1.3 million from last year,
shown in the table below.



Capital Assets

For the years ended June 30 (in thousands) 2024 2023

Land $ 9,030 $ 9,030
Construction in Progress 3,480 3,082
Buildings, net 61,729 64,223
Other Improvements and Infrastructure, net 10,163 9,148
Equipment, net 1,414 1,629
Library Resources, net 8 11
Total Capital Assets, net $ 85,824 $ 87,123

The decrease in net capital assets can be attributed primarily to the $2.1 million increase
in accumulated depreciation and $800K net increase in capital assets, which includes a
loss on disposal of assets, and the completion of two capital projects: Electrical
infrastructure and Walnut Street Compound. Additional information on capital assets
can be found in Note 7 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Right to use leased assets are also part of the College’s capital assets. Right to use lease
assets decreased due to amortization recorded in FY24 for $70,917. In FY22, the College
implemented GASB 87, Leases and recorded the following right to use leased asset as
part of its capital assets. The amounts in the table below are reported net of
accumulated amortization.

Leased Assets
Right to Use Asset Type 2024 2023 Change
Leased Building, net $ 88,646 $§ 159,563 (70,917)

Total Leased Capital Assets,net $§ 88,646 $§ 159,563 $ (70,917)

At June 30, 2024, the College had $1.99 million in outstanding debt. This represents a
decrease of $105K from last year, as shown in the table below. The College entered into
a Certificate of Participation (COP) for the Trans Alta Building during FY17. The College
implemented GASB 87, Leases in FY22. The College has a right to use lease for the
Southwest Washington Flexible Trades (SWFT) building which was entered into during
FY22.

Certificates of Participation and Right to Use Leases

For the years ended June 30 (in thousands) 2024 2023 Change

Certificates of Participation $ 1,990 $ 2,095 $ (105)
Right to Use Lease Liabilities 89 160 $ (71)
Total $ 2079 "$ 2255 $ (176

Additional information of lease payable, notes payable, debt service requirements and
long-term liabilities can be found in Notes 12, 13, 14 and 15 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements.



Financial Summary and Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future

For the next biennium, the Washington State budget is currently facing a significant
deficit. It is too early to say for certain how this will impact the college’s budget;
however, the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC) is discussing
budget cuts in the 5% to 8% range. While a budget cut in this range would be
manageable for Centralia College, the situation may be complicated if inflation
continues above average levels, driving up the cost of operations.

Currently, the SBCTC is reviewing the allocation formula for colleges, and is planning to
make changes to the formula in the near future. The College has reviewed the first
round of proposed changes, and it seems likely that some potential negative funding
changes would likely be offset by other positive changes. The results of the proposed
changes will be finalized in spring of 2025.

While enrollment climbed consistently from spring of 2022 to fall of 2024, for winter
2025, enrollment growth is currently stagnant, and equal to winter 2024. If enrollment
remains flat, tuition and contract revenue will be stagnant.

In addition, changes in Federal administration may bring additional budget impacts,
particularly for federally-funded programs. It is too soon to make any specific
predictions about exactly how these changes may play out.



Financial Statements

Centralia College Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2024

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Investments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable, net (Note 4)
Lease receivable, net (Note 5)
Inventories (Note 6)
Interest receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Net pension asset (Note 16)
Investments (Note 3)
Long-term lease receivable , net (Note 5)
Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 7)
Capital assets, net of depreciation (Note 7)
Leased assets, net of amortization (Note 7)
Total non-current assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows
Deferred outflows related to pensions (Note 16)
Deferred outflows related to OPEB (Note 17)
Total Deferred Outflows
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8)
Total OPEB liability (Note 15 and 17)
Unearned revenues (Note 9)
Compensated absences (Note 11 and 15)
Leases and certificates of participation payable (Note 12, 13, 14 and 15)
Net pension liability (Note 15 and 16)
Total current liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total OPEB Liability (Note 15 and 17)
Net pension liability (Note 15 and 16)
Leases and certificates of participation (Note 12, 13, 14 and 15)
Compensated absences (Note 11 and 15)
Total non-current liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows
Deferred inflows on lease receivable (Note 5)
Deferred inflows related to pensions (Note 16)
Deferred inflows related to OPEB {Note 17)
Total Deferred Inflows

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted Expendable for:
Pension Asset
Other
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

6,998,612
1,978,860
8,408,517
125,945
210,813
26,294
42,890

17,791,931

1,328,732
2,271,647
6,179,340
531,406
12,509,187
73,315,127
88,646

96,224,085

114,016,016

3,634,535
2,135,697

5,770,232

3,453,666
239,267
782,137
132,673
202,278

53,850

4,863,871

9,255,903
1,991,687
2,145,645
1,897,160

15,290,395

20,154,266

657,420
3,079,155
7,194,794

10,931,369

83,565,036

2,271,647
1,316,231
1,547,699

88,700,613




Centralia College Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024
Operating Revenues
Student tuition and fees, net $
State and local grants and contracts
Federal grants and contracts
Auxiliary enterprise sales
Other operating revenues

3,187,104
17,191,257
1,572,266
1,133,609
173,419

Total operating revenue

23,257,655

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee Benefits
Scholarships and fellowships
Supplies, materials and services
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Utilities

23,152,227
6,280,255
4,945,642
3,550,542

644,703
3,922,290
3,101,125

671,970

Total operating expenses

46,268,754

Operating income (loss)

(23,011,099)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State operating appropriations
Federal Pell grant revenue
Interest income, leases
Investment income
Interest on indebtedness
Building fee remittance
Innovation fund remittance
Loss on asset disposal

20,152,943
3,563,561
2,687
1,311,069
(471,765)
(674,338)
(112,955)
(295,039)

Net non-operating revenue

23,476,163

Gain before capital appropriations

Capital appropriations

465,064

1,447,076

Change in net position

Net Position
Net position, beginning of year

1,912,140

86,788,473

Net position, end of year $

88,700,613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



Centralia College Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Tuition and fees $ 3,207,469
Grants and contracts 19,211,565
Payments for employees (22,883,523)
Payments for benefits (7,725,598)
Payments to vendors (3,340,727)
Payments for scholarships and fellowship (4,945,642)
Payments for utilities (632,661)
Auxiliary enterprise sales 1,028,320
Other receipts 175,228
Other payments (8,455,028)
Net cash used by operating activities (24,360,597)

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

State appropriations 20,152,943
Federal Pell grant receipts 3,563,561
Building fee remittance (674,338)
Innovation fee remittance (112,955)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 22,929,211

Cash Flows From Capital Related Financing Activities

Capital appropriations 1,447,076
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 56,120
Purchases of capital assets (1,279,312)
Principal paid on capital debt (105,000)
Interest paid on capital debt (104,750)

Net cash provided by capital related financing activities 14,134

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of investments (2,494,093)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 2,500,000
Investment income 684,854
Net cash provided by investing activities 690,761

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (726,491)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 9,053,835
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 8,327,344

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



Centralia College Statement of Cash Flows — Continued
For Year Ended June 30, 2023
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
used by Operating Activities
Operating Loss $ (23,011,099)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities

Depreciation expense 3,101,125
Changes in assets, liabilities and deferrals
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (166,961)
Accounts receivable (2,716,975)
Inventories (60,534)
Compensated absences 193,935
Pension/OPEB liability (1,696,873)
Unearned revenues (3,215)
Net cash used by operating activities $ (24,360,597)

Significant non-cash Transactions
Capital Assets purchased with accounts payable $ 802,919
Loss on disposal of Capital Assets 351,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



Audited Financial Statements of Component Unit

CENTRALIA COLLEGE FOUNDATION
A Washington Not-For-Profit Corporation

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,336,922 3,212,286
Pledges Receivable 15,500 18,000
Current Portion of Note Receivable - 10,433
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,352,422 3,240,719
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Long-Term Pledges Receivable, Net 10,600 20,100
Long-Term Note Receivable 2,350,585 348,215
Life Insurance Policies 67,482 48,075
Investment in Affiliates 192,748 250,000
Long-Term Investments 23829629 20,955,255
Land, Building, and Equipment Held for the Benefit of the College, Net 4,757,727 3,309,488
Land, Building, and Equipment, Net 60,132 65,023
TOTALNONCURRENT ASSETS 30,768,903 24,998,006
TOTAL ASSETS 32121325 2R23B7XS
LIABILITIES AND MET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 314,883 115,043
Charitable Gift Annuity Contracts 71.22T7 7,662
Payable to the College = 300
TOTAL UABILITIES 322,110 123,005
MNET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 2,997,948 3,247,300
TOTAL WITHOUT DOMNOR RESTRICTIONS 2,997,048 3,247,300
With Donor Restriction
Purpose or Time Restrictions 11,403,339 15,259,211
Perpetual in Nature 17,397,928 9,609,209
TOTAL WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 28,801,267 24 B6B.419
TOTAL NET ASSETS 31799215 28115719
TOTAL LUABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 32,121,325 2R 23R 724

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement




CENTRALIA COLLEGE FOUNDATION
A Washington Not-For-Profit Corporation

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Period Ending June 30, 2024 and 2023

Without Donor 'With Donor

Restrictions  Restrictions 2008 Total 223 Tatal
SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Contributions 313,900 1,593,507 1,907,407 S 1,709,015
Grants - - - 50,000
Specdial Fundraising Event 56,675 10,407 67,082 47,020
Club Income - B2,854 82 B54 62,164
Met Investment Return 2,234 2,690,843 2,693,077 2,231,170
Gain on 5ale of Property - 321,960 321,960 -
Rental Revenue - 34,007 34,007 50,124
Other Income - (470) (470) 5,000
Met Assets Released from Restrictions 800,260 (800,260) - -
Total Support and Revenue 1,173,070 3,932 B4R 5,105,917 4,154 503
EXPEMNSES
Program Services 871,135 - 871,135 880 433
Management and General 354,797 - 354,797 401,827
Fundraising 196,490 - 156,450 2,676
Total Expenses 1,422,422 - 1,422,437 1,293,936
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (249,353) 3,932 B4R 3,683 495 2.B60,567
MET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,247,300 24 8568 419 28,115,720 25,255,153
MET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S 2097948 S2BB01267 S 31799215 528115720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



CENTRALIA COLLEGE FOUNDATION

A Washington MNot-For-Profit Corporation

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Period Ending June 30, 2024 and 2023

Purchased and In-Kind Services
Grants and Allocations
Depreciation

Other Goods and Services
Printing and Communications
Professional Fees

Small Equipment Purchases
Cost of Goods Sold

Insurance and Property Taxes
Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Printing

Travel, Conferences, and Training
Repairs

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Program Management
Services and General

Fundraising 2024 Total 2023 Total

S 46857 § 145028 S5 120551 S 312,446 5 405,879
547,655 - - 547,655 403,080
185,834 440 - 186,274 122,002
18,614 57,589 47,878 124,001 109,734

. - 206 206 2,544

. 30,537 - 30,537 27,066

41,979 - - 41,578 86,283

- - - 14

1,704 7,385 2,272 11,361 19,533

76 328 10 505 4,958

- 1,360 1,360 1,951

17,978 77,905 23971 119,854 70,730

3,096 33,376 - 36,472 38,187

7,119 1,709 - 8,028 2,475
113 400 151 754 -

5 BFL135 5 354,797 5 196490 51,422,422 51,293,936




CENTRALIA COLLEGE FOUNDATION
A Washington Not-For-Profit Corporation

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Period Ending June 30, 2024 and 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Cash Received from Support and Revenue
Cash Paid for Management, Program, and Fundraising
Dividends and Interest

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Land, Building, Eguipmment, and Construction in Progress
Sale of Land, Building, and Equipment
Receipts on Notes Receivable
Purchases of Investments
Proceeds from Sale of Investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions to be Held in Perpetuity
Prior Period Adjustment

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Finandng Activities

MNET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

2024 2023
5 1,316,043 § 1,024,011
(1,037,043) {1,195,065)
99,591 2,119
378,591 (168,935)
(1,504,217} 550,321
374,595
(1,991,937) (328,384)
- (250,000)
{141,602) o7E,670
(3,263,161) 950,607
1,009,207 909,703
1,009,207 o0o, 703
(1,875,364) 1,691,375
3,212,286 1,520,911
5 1,335,922 § 3,212,286

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



CENTRALIA COLLEGE FOUNDATION
A Washington Not-For-Profit Corporation

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS [CONTINUED)
For the Period Ending June 30, 2024 and 2023

RECONCILATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Met Assets $3,6E3 405 5 2,860,567

Adjustments to recondle change in net assets to net assets
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Met unrealized and realized losses from investments (2,700, 788) (2,225,937)
Contributions to be held in perpetuity (1,009, 207) (909,703)
Depreciation 186,274 122 002
Life insurance policies 7711 (5,233)
(Increase) decrease in:
Contributions receivable 12,000 27,500
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 159,240 87,945
Charitable gift annuity contracts (435) (2,944)
Payable to the college (300) (108,132)
MET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 378591 S (168,935)

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICY AND NONCASHTRANSACTIONS

For purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash eguivalents is considered to indude only
cash on hand, and cash and money market accounts used for operating activities. In 2024 and 2023,
noncash transactions include donated materials and services of $221,866 and 5196,937, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Reporting Entity

Centralia College ("College”) is a comprehensive community college offering open-door
academic transfer, workforce education, and basic skill programs, as well as, community
service and continuing education courses. The College confers applied baccalaureate
degrees, associate degrees, certificates and high school diplomas. It is governed by a
five-member Board of Trustees appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the state
Senate. The College is an agency of the State of Washington. The financial activity of
the College is included in the State's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. These
notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The Centralia College Foundation (“Foundation”) is a separate but affiliated non-profit
entity, incorporated under Washington law in 1982 and recognized as a tax exempt
501(c)(3) charity. The Foundation’s charitable purpose is to receive gifts, bequests, and
donations to be held in trust and administered to advance the goals of Centralia
College. Because the majority of the Foundation’s income and resources are restricted
by donors and may only be used for the benefit of the college or its students, the
Foundation is considered a component unit based on the criteria contained in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 61, 39 and 14. A
discrete component unit is an entity which is legally separate from the College, but has
the potential to provide significant financial benefits to the College or whose
relationship with the College is such that excluding it would cause the College’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The Foundation'’s financial statements are discretely presented in this report. The
Foundation's statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Intra-entity transactions and
balances between the College and the Foundation are not eliminated for financial
statement presentation. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Foundation
distributed approximately $574,401 to the College for restricted and unrestricted
purposes. A copy of the Foundation’s complete financial statements may be obtained
from the Foundation’s Administrative Offices at (360)623-8942.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for State and
Local Governments as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements
and Management Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. For




financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government
engaged only in Business Type Activities (BTA). In accordance with BTA reporting, the
College presents a Management'’s Discussion and Analysis; a Statement of Net Position;
a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; a Statement of Cash
Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements. The format provides a comprehensive,
entity-wide perspective of the college’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred
inflows, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the College have been prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an
obligation has been incurred, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. For the financial
statements, intra-agency receivables and payables have generally been eliminated.
However, revenues and expenses from the College’s auxiliary enterprises are treated as
though the College were dealing with private vendors. For all other funds, transactions
that are reimbursements of expenses are recorded as reductions of expense.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the College receives (or gives) value without
directly giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange, includes state and federal
appropriations, and certain grants and donations. Revenues are recognized, net of
estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank demand deposits, and deposits
with the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). Cash in the
investment portfolio is not included in cash and cash equivalents as it is held for
investing purposes. Cash and cash equivalents that are held with the intent to fund
College operations are classified as current assets along with operating funds invested
in the LGIP. The College records all cash and cash equivalents at fair value. Investments
in the state’s LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized cost
which approximates fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value.




Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary
enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff. This also includes amounts
due from federal, state and local governments or private sources as allowed under the
terms of grants and contracts. Accounts receivable are shown net of estimated
uncollectible amounts.

Leases Receivables

Lease receivables are recorded at the present value of future lease payments expected
to be received from the lessee during the term of the lease, reduced by a provision for
estimated uncollectible amounts. Lease receivables are subsequently reduced over the
life of the lease as cash is received in the applicable reporting period. The present value
of future lease payments to be received are discounted using the State of Washington'’s
incremental borrowing rate unless otherwise noted in the contract term.

Inventories
Inventories consist of merchandise held by auxiliary departments. Inventories are valued
at cost, using the First-in First-out (FIFO) valuation method.

Capital Assets

In accordance with state law, capital assets constructed with state funds are owned by
the State of Washington. Property titles are shown accordingly. However, responsibility
for managing the assets rests with the College. As a result, the assets are included in
the financial statements because excluding them would have been misleading.

Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost, or if acquired by gift, at acquisition
value at the date of the gift. GASB 34 guidance concerning preparing initial estimates
for historical cost and accumulated depreciation related to infrastructure was

followed. Capital additions, replacements and major renovations are capitalized. The
value of assets constructed includes all material direct and indirect construction costs.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, excluding intangible right-to-use lease assets and subscription-based IT
agreement assets. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense
in the year in which the expense was incurred.

In accordance with the state capitalization policy:
e Land, including land use rights with indefinite lives acquired with the purchase of
the underlying land, and ancillary costs are capitalized
 Infrastructure with a cost of $100,000 or more is capitalized and depreciated over
20-50 years



o Building, building improvements, improvements other than building and
leasehold improvements with a cost of $100,000 or more are capitalized and
depreciated over 5-50 years

o Lease assets with total payments over the lease term of $500,000 or more are
capitalized and amortized over the life of the lease

o All capital assets acquired with Certificates of Participation, are capitalized and
depreciated based on the category of asset

o All other capital assets with a unit cost (including ancillary costs) of $5,000 or
greater, or collections with a total cost of $5,000 or greater are capitalized and
depreciated over 3-50 years depending on specific category of asset

Leases (Lessee)

Right-to-use lease assets are recorded at the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus lease payment made at/or before the commencement of the lease term, less any
incentives received from the lessor at/or before the commencement of the lease, plus
initial direct costs that are ancillary to place the asset into service. Lease assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of
the underlying asset.

The college reviews assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
have indicated that the carrying amount of its assets might not be

recoverable. Impaired assets are reported at the lower of cost or fair value. At June 30,
2024, no assets had been written down.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenues occur when funds have been collected prior to the end of the fiscal
year but related to the subsequent fiscal year. Unearned revenues also include tuition
and fees paid with financial aid funds. The College has recorded summer and fall quarter
tuition and fees as unearned revenues.

Tax Exemption

The College is a tax-exempt organization under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income. The Foundation is
exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pension and OPEB Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability in accordance with GASB 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the State of Washington Public Employees’




Retirement System (PERS) and the Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) and additions
to/deductions from PERS's and TRS's fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by PERS and TRS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

The College also reports its share of the net pension liability for the State Board
Retirement Plan in accordance with GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and Related Assets.

The College reports its share of OPEB liability in accordance with GASB Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions
(OPEB). This Statement requires the College to recognize its proportionate share of the
state’s actuarially determined OPEB liability with a one-year lag measurement date
similar to GASB Statement No. 68.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent consumption of net position that is applicable
to a future period. Deferred inflows of resources represent acquisition of net position
that is applicable to a future period.

Deferred inflows related to lease receivable reflects the remaining amount due for all
years in the current lease agreement.

Deferred outflows related to pensions are recorded when projected earnings on pension
plan investments exceed actual earnings and are amortized to pension expense using a
systematic and rational method over a closed period of time. Deferred inflows related to
pensions are recorded when actual earnings on pension plan investments exceed
projected earnings and are amortized in the same manner as deferred outflows.

Deferred outflows and inflows on pensions also include the difference between
expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors;
changes of assumptions about future economic, demographic, or other input factors; or
changes in the college’s proportionate share of pension liabilities. These are amortized
over the average expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided
with pensions through each pension plan. Employer transactions to pension plans made
subsequent to the measurement date are also deferred and reduce pension liabilities in
the subsequent year.



The portion of differences between expected and actual experience with regard to
economic or demographic factors, changes of assumptions about future economic or
demographic factors, and changes in the college’s proportionate share of OPEB liability
that are not recognized in OPEB expense should be reported as deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB. Differences between
projected and actual earning on OPEB plan investments that are not recognized in OPEB
expense should be reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB. Employer contributions to the OPEB plan subsequent to the
measurement date of the collective OPEB liability should be recorded as deferred
outflows of resources related to OPEB.

Net Position
The College’s net position is classified, as follows:

Net investment in capital assets — This represents the College’s total investment
in capital assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital
assets.

Restricted for Nonexpendable - This consists of endowment and similar type
funds for which donors or other outside sources have stipulated as a condition of
the gift instrument that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in
perpetuity and invested for the purpose of producing present and future income
which may either be expended or added to the principle.

Restricted net position, expendable — The amount of restricted net pension,
expendable includes $2,271,647 for Net Pension Asset using the GASB preferred
method which excludes deferred inflows and deferred outflows from the
calculation. The total restricted net position, expendable also includes resources
in which the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance
with restrictions placed by third parties.

Unrestricted net position — These represent resources derived from student
tuition and fees, and sales and services of educational departments and auxiliary
enterprises.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted
resources, the College’s practice is to first apply the expense towards restricted

resources and then towards unrestricted resources.

Classification of Revenues and Expenses




The College has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues
according to the following criteria:

Operating Revenues. This includes activities that are directly related to the principal
operations of the College, such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of waivers and
scholarship discounts and allowances, (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises and
(3) federal, state and local grants and contracts that primarily support the
operational/educational activities of the colleges. An example would include the
contract with OSPI to offer Running Start. The college also receives Adult Basic
Education grants that support the primary educational mission of the college.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses include salaries, wages, fringe benefits, utilities,
supplies and materials, purchased services, and depreciation.

Non-operating Revenues. This includes activities that are not directly related to the
ongoing operations of the College, such as gifts and contributions, state appropriations,
investment income and Pell grants received from the federal government.

Non-operating Expenses. Non-operating expenses include state remittance related to the
building fee and the innovation fee, along with interest incurred on the Certificate of
Participation Loans.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenue, and certain other revenues from students, are reported
net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference
between the stated charges for goods and services charged by the College, and the
amount that is paid by the students and/or third parties on the students’ behalf. Certain
government grants, such as Pell grant, and other Federal, State or non-governmental
programs are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in the College’s
financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to
satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a
scholarship discount and allowance. Discounts and allowances for the year ending June
30, 2024 were $5,007,080.

State Appropriations

The state of Washington appropriates funds to the State Board of Community and
Technical Colleges (SBCTC) which allocates funding to the College on both an annual
and biennial basis. These revenues are reported as non-operating revenues on the




Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and recognized as such
when the related expenses are incurred.

Building and Innovations Fee Remittance

Tuition collected includes amounts remitted to the Washington State Treasurer’s office
to be held and appropriated in future years. The Building Fee portion of tuition charged
to students is an amount established by the Legislature is subject to change annually.
The fee provides funding for capital construction and projects on a system wide basis
using a competitive biennial allocation process. The Building Fee is remitted on the 35th
day of each quarter. The Innovation Fee was established in order to fund the State Board
of Community and Technical College’s Strategic Technology Plan. The use of the fund is
to implement new ERP software across the entire system. On a monthly basis, the
College’s remits the portion of tuition collected for the Innovation Fee to the State
Treasurer for allocation to SBCTC. These remittances are non-exchange transactions
reported as an expense in the non-operating revenues and expenses section of the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Note 2. Accounting and Reporting Changes

In FY2024 the college changed the way the State Board Retirement Plan (SBRP) is
reported in the financial statements. Previously the measurement date and reporting
date were the same but there is now a one-year lag between measurement and
reporting date which causes an increase in deferred outflows of $12,895 for the
contributions made subsequent to measurement date. Both methods are allowed under
GASB 68. This change is necessary to allow the actuaries sufficient time to gather
information for the net pension liability calculations. This change does not alter the
methodology for the calculations, it only alters the reporting timeline. The previous
reporting timeline required that periodically estimates had to be made for returns on
investments and this new timeline will allow final investment activity to be utilized. Net
Pension Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and pension expense will be reported for FY24 as
the same values reported in FY23. Deferred outflows will now include contributions and
payments made subsequent to the measurement date.

In April 2022, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, which was issued to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting in various areas including
derivatives, leases, public-private and public-public partnerships, subscription-based
information technology arrangements, as well as others. The College will adopt this
statement in line with the dates as outlined in the standard, which varies depending on
the applicable paragraph beginning in fiscal year 2022 through fiscal year 2024.

Note 3. Deposits and Investments



Deposits
Cash and cash equivalents include bank demand deposits, petty cash held at the College

and unit shares in the Washington State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP). The Office of the State Treasurer invests state treasury cash surpluses where
funds can be disbursed at any time without prior notice or penalty. For reporting
purposes, pooled investments are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. For purposes of reporting cash flows, the state considers cash and pooled
investments to be cash equivalents. Pooled investments include short-term, highly liquid
investments that are both readily convertible to cash and are so near their maturity
dates that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in
interest rates. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the College considers all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash
equivalents.

Investments in Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)

The College is a participant in the Local Government Investment Pool as authorized by
Chapter 294, Laws of 1986, and is managed and operated by the Washington State
Treasurer. The State Finance Committee is the administrator of the statute that created
the pool and adopts rules. The State Treasurer is responsible for establishing the
investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy annually and proposed changes
are reviewed by the LGIP advisory Committee.

Investments in the LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized
cost which approximates fair value. The LGIP is an unrated external investment pool. The
pool portfolio is invested in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification
and liquidity requirements set forth by the GASBS 79 for external investments pools that
elect to measure, for financial reporting purposes, investments at amortized cost. The
LGIP does not have any legally binding guarantees of share values. The LGIP does not
impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.

The Office of the State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone LGIP financial report. A copy of
the report is available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia,
Washington 98504-0200, online at http://www.tre.wa.gov.

As of June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of the College’s cash and equivalents was
$8,327,344 as represented in the table below.

Cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and cash equivalents of $1,629,288 at
June 30, 2023.


http://www.tre.wa.gov/

Cash and Cash Equivalents June 30, 2024

Change Funds 5 45350
Undeposited Local Cash 2491
Bank Demand and Time Deposits 704,691
Local Government Investment Pool 7615212

Total 3327344

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash equivalents restricted for grants,
contracts, Associated Students of Centralia College capital projects and agency clearing
funds totaling $1,328,732 at June 30, 2024.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for bank demand deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned to it. The majority of the College’s
demand deposits are with Key Bank. All cash and equivalents, except for change funds
held by the College, are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
by collateral held by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC).

Investments

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the College may face should interest rate variances affect
the fair value of investments. The College investment policy stipulates that the College
manage its exposure to interest rate risk by limiting the duration of investment and
structuring the maturity of investments to mature at various points in the year, with a
maximum duration for fixed-income securities of 48 months from the time of purchase
until maturity.

Although bonds are issued with clearly defined maturities, an issuer may be able to
redeem, or call, a bond earlier than its maturity date. The College may then have to
consider replacing the called bond with a bond that may have a lower yield than the
original yield. The call feature causes the fair value to be highly sensitive to changes in
interest rates. Bond maturities, not factoring in any call provision they may contain,
mature over the next four years as follows:

Fair Market Value Investment Maturities (in months)
6/30/2024 0-12 13-24 2548
5 8.158.200 1.978.360 2277140 3.902200

Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of an
investment of a single issuer. Fixed-income securities are subject to credit risk, which is




the chance that a bond issuer will fail to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or
that negative perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause
security prices to decline. Management believes that obligations of the U.S. government
sponsored enterprise (GSE) bonds, such as Fannie Mae (FNMA), Federal Home Loan
Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Federal Farm Credit Bank or those
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, are considered to have minimal
concentrations of credit risk.

Investment in Government Securities

The College has $8.419 million in US Government sponsored enterprise bonds, with
staggered maturities, in $500,000 -$800,000 amounts. The original maturities ranged
from 12 to 48 months. The College has assessed the effects of Statement No. 72 on its
investments, and reports investments at fair value. Fair value is defined in the
accounting standards as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Assets and liabilities reported at fair value are organized into a
hierarchy based on the levels of inputs observable in the marketplace that are used to
measure fair value. Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and
take into account the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation
decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit data, liquidity statistics and other
factors specific to the financial instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data
obtained from independent sources. In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the entity’'s
assumptions about how market participants would value the financial instrument.

A financial instrument'’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level
of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following describes
the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation
methodologies used for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring
basis:

The College measures and reports investments at fair value using the valuation input
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles, as follows:

Level 1 — Prices based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 — Quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other than
quoted prices that are not observable;



Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

At June 30, 2024, the College had the following investments:

Investments by fair value level Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed income securities
U5, Government Agency Securities 5 8.158200 2419507 5,738,693 NA

Note 4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary
enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff. It also includes amounts due
from federal, state and local governments or private sources in connection with
reimbursements of allowable expenses made according to sponsored agreements. The
major components of accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:

Accounts Receivable Amount
Grants and contracts 5 2306915
D from other agences 2484306
State Appropriations 1830885
Tuition and fees 950,387
Anxiiary support 337002
Other 305,205
L ess Allowance for Uncolkctible Accounts (6.973)
Accounts Receivable, net & 8,408,517

Note 5. Leases Receivable

The College leases a portion of the Transitional Studies Building (TSB) to the
Washington State Employment Security Department and the original lease expired on
April 30, 2024. A new lease was signed which expires on April 30, 2029. Payments are
monthly based on the contract terms and conditions. Leases receivable are reported net
of amortization on the Statement of Net Position. The lease receivables are reported at
net present value using the State of Washington's incremental interest rate unless
otherwise noted in the contract term. Revenue recognized under this lease agreement
during the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Leases Receivable Revenue recognized during FY2024
Basis Term (through) Lease Revenue Interest Revenue
T3E Building April 2024 5 118985 § 403
T3E Building April 2029 261 219
Total 141 655 2687

Note 6. Inventories



Merchandise inventories for the College Bookstore at year-end, stated at cost using the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) inventory valuation method were $210,813 at June 30, 2024.

Note 7. Capital Assets
A summary of the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2024 is
presented as follows. The current year net depreciation expense was $2,099,473.

Jume 30, 2023 Additions Ratirements June 30, 2024
Capital assets

Land $ 9020577 9020 577
Construction in progress 3081762 1438474 10440, 631 3,479 610
Total capital aszets, non-depraciable 12,111 339 1438474 1040, 631 12,509,188
Buildings 93,431 429 346,155 98,085,274
Infrastructure 10,747,958 1,435,869 12,183, 827
Fumitvre, fixtures and aquipment 6,228,137 248514 935,738 3,540,912
Library rasources 2209121 2209 121
Total capital assets, depreciable 117,706,645 1684383 1,281,803 118,109,134

Less accunmlated depreciation
Buildinzs 34208175 2175158 27472 36,355,861
Infrastmcture 1,599 662 420,719 2.020.381
Fumitvre, fixtures and aquipment 4500033 431 462 003,263 4,127 232
Library resourees 2287 664 2,865 2,200,533
Total accnmmlated depraciation 42,604 534 3,030,208 030,735 44 704 008
Capital aszets, net 5 87123450 5 02654 5 1,391,785 5 B5EM314

Lease assets as of June 30, 2024 and lease asset activity for the year ended June 30,
2024 are summarized below:

June 30, 2023 Addition= Eetirements June 30, 2024
Leazed azsetz

Leaazad Buildings 248209 248 209
Total leased assats 248209 - - 248,209

Lezz accumulated amortization
Accovm Amort. Lassed Buddings 33,646 0017 150 563
Total acenmulated amorbization 23,646 0,017 - 159 563
Leazed assets, net 5 159563 5 (917 5 - 3 58,646

Note 8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
At June 30, 2024, accounts payable and accrued liabilities were as follows:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilitiez Amount

Salaries and Wages 5 654047
B ensfitz 649 539
Utilities 74,680
G rants and Contracts 300,749
All other 1,234 642

Total Aecovnts Payable and A cerned Liabilities 34353 666



Note 9. Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue is comprised of receipts which have not yet met revenue recognition
criteria, at June 30, 2024, as follows:

Unearned REevenue Amount
Tuition and fees 5 376,839
Auxiliary enterprises 85,738
Grants and Contracts 319,520
Total Unearned Revenue 782,137

Note 10. Risk Management

The College is exposed to various risk of loss related to tort liability, injuries to
employees, errors and omissions, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, and
natural disasters. The College purchases insurance to mitigate these risks. Management
believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses for the
covered risks.

The College purchases commercial property insurance through the master property
program administered by the Department of Enterprise Services for buildings that were
acquired with COP proceeds. The policy has a deductible of $250,000 per occurrence
and the policy limit is $100,000,000 per occurrence. The college has had no claims in
excess of the coverage amount within the past three years. The College assumes its
potential property losses for most other buildings and contents.

The College participates in a State of Washington risk management self-insurance
program, which covers its exposure to tort, general damage and vehicle claims.
Premiums paid to the State are based on actuarially determined projections and include
allowances for payments of both outstanding and current liabilities. Coverage is
provided up to $10,000,000 for each claim with no deductible. The college has had no
claims in excess of the coverage amount within the past three years.

The College, in accordance with state policy, pays unemployment claims on a pay-as-
you-go basis. Payments made for claims from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, were
$49,638.

Note 11. Compensated Absences

At termination of employment, employees may receive a cash payment for all
accumulated vacation and compensatory time. Employees who retire get 25% of the
value of their accumulated sick leave credited to a Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary
Association (VEBA) account, which may be used for future medical expenses and
insurance purposes. The amounts of unpaid vacation and compensatory time
accumulated by employees are accrued when incurred. The sick leave liability is
recorded as an actuarial estimate of one-fourth the total balance on the payroll



records. The accrued vacation leave totaled $1,148,511 and accrued sick leave totaled
$880,651 at June 30, 2024.

An estimated amount of $132,002 based on a three-year average payout, is accrued as a
current liability. The remaining amount of accrued annual and sick leave are categorized
as non-current liabilities. Compensatory time of $671 is categorized as a current liability
since it must be used before other leave.

Note 12. Leases Payable

The College entered into a lease with the Centralia College Foundation for the use of the
Southwest Washington Flexible Trades Building (SWFT) on April 1, 2022. The lease
liabilities are reported at net present value using the State of Washington’s incremental
borrowing rate unless otherwise noted in the contract term. The amount of the lease
payments for FY24 were $72,000. This lease has a 42-month term and expires on
September 30, 2025.

As of June 30, 2024, the future minimum lease payments under this right-to-use lease
consists of the following:

Lease Pavable
Fiscal vear Principal Interest Total
2023 71,4935 503 72,000
2026 17.973 27 13000
Total b 80468 S 512 % 00,000

Note 13. Notes Payable

In 2017, the College obtained financing in order to cover the student’s share of the
TransAlta Commons through certificates of participation (COP), issued by the
Washington Office of State Treasurer (OST) in the amount of $2,595,000 at a premium of
$415,668. The premium is to be amortized over the twenty-year term of the loan, at an
annual amount of $20,783. The interest rate charged is approximately 3.4%.

The students assessed themselves a mandatory fee to service this debt. Student fees
related to the COP are accounted for in a dedicated fund, which is used to pay principal
and interest, not coming out of the general operating budget.

The College's debt service requirements for this note agreement for the next five years
and thereafter are as follows in Note 14.

Note 14. Annual Debt Service Requirements
Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2024 are as follows:



Certificates of Participation

Fiscal vear Principal Interest Total

2023 110,000 00,500 209,500
2026 120,000 94,000 214.000
2027 125,000 585000 213,000
2028 130,000 81750 211,750
2020 135,000 73,250 210,250
2030-2034 793,000 266,730 1.061.750
2033-2037 573,000 58.250 633,230
Total ] 1990,000 5 763,500 8 2,753,500

Note 15. Schedule of Long-term Liabilities

Balance B alanc e
outs mnding outstanding Current
G/30/23 Ad ditio ns Reductions G024 portion
Certificates of Participation 5 2095000 5 - 5 105000 5 1000000 5 110000
COP - Amortized Premism 5 280238 5 - 5 20783 5 268455 5 20,783
Pizhi-to-uss leases 5 150330 3 - 5 7B 5 B0 448 5 71485
Compensstad Absances 5 1B35808 5 1320718 5 LI35783 5 023333 5 132473
Tota] OPEE fabdiry 5 BB45500 5 B33B528 5 T4BEBSS 5 0485171 5 230287
MNeat Pension Habitiny 5 2176571 & 4408280 5 580863 § 2045537 8 53,850
Total 5 15402545 5 10018075 5 9602157 5 15018454 5 628068

Note 16. Retirement Plans

A. General

The College offers three contributory pension plans: the Washington State Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), the Washington State Teachers' Retirement
System (TRS), and the State Board Retirement Plan (SBRP). PERS and TRS are cost
sharing multiple-employer defined-benefit pension plans administered by the
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems (DRS). The State Board Retirement
Plan (SBRP) is a defined contribution single employer pension plan with a supplemental
payment when required. The SBRP is administered by the State Board for Community
and Technical Colleges (SBCTC) and available to faculty, exempt administrative and
professional staff of the state’s public community and technical colleges. The College
reports its proportionate share of the net pension liability as it is a part of the
community and technical college system.

Basis of Accounting

Pension plans administered by the state are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, employee and employer
contributions are recognized in the period in which employee services are performed;
investment gains and losses are recognized as incurred; and benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan.




For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/(asset), deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of all plans, and additions to/deductions
from all plan fiduciary net position have been determined in all material respects on the
same basis as they are reported by the plans.

In accordance with Statement No. 68, the College has elected to use the prior fiscal year
end as the measurement date for reporting net pension liabilities for all DRS
administered plans. In FY24 the College has elected to change from current fiscal year as
the measurement date for reporting pension liabilities to a one-year lag between
measurement and reporting date for the Higher Education Supplemental Retirement
Plan. Net pension liabilities, plan expenses and Deferred inflows will be reported as the
same amounts in FY23. Deferred Outflows are increased by the amount of FY24
contributions subsequent to measurement date.

The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 68 for the College, for fiscal year 2024:

Aggregate Pension Amounts - All Plans (including SBRP)

Net pension assets $2,271,647
Net pension liabilities 2,045,537
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 3,634,535
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 3,079,155
Pension expense (133,372)

Department of Retirement Systems

As established in chapter 41.50 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), the
Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) administers eight retirement systems covering
eligible employees of the state and local governments. The Governor appoints the
director of the DRS.

The DRS administered systems are comprised of 12 defined benefit pension plans and 3
defined benefit/ defined contribution plans. Below are the DRS plans that the College
participates in:

* Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan 1 - defined benefit

Plan 2 - defined benefit

Plan 3 - defined benefit/defined contribution
* Teachers' Retirement System (TRS)



Plan 1 - defined benefit
Plan 2 - defined benefit
Plan 3 - defined benefit/defined contribution

Although some assets of the plans are commingled for investment purposes, each plan’s
assets may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of that plan in
accordance with the terms of the plan. Administration of the PERS and TRS plans is
funded by an employer rate of 0.18 percent of employee salaries.

Pursuant to RCW 41.50.770, the College offers its employees that elect to participate a
deferred compensation program in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement,
disability, death, or unforeseeable financial emergency. This deferred compensation plan
is administered by the DRS.

The DRS prepares a stand-alone financial report that is compliant with the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 67. Copies of the report may be obtained by contacting the
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, PO Box 48380, Olympia, WA
98504-8380 or online at https://www.drs.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/2023-
ACFR-Document.pdf.

Higher Education

As established in chapter 28B.10 RCW, eligible higher education state employees may
participate in higher education retirement plans. These plans include a defined
contribution plan administered by a third party with a supplemental defined benefit
component (funded on a pay-as-you-go basis) which is administered by the state.

B. College Participation in Plans Administered by the Department of Retirement
Systems

PERS and TRS

Plan Description (PERS). The Legislature established the Public Employees’ Retirement
System (PERS) in 1947. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in chapters
41.34 and 41.40 RCW and may be amended only by the Legislature. Membership in the
system includes: elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme Court,
Court of Appeals, and Superior Courts (other than judges currently in a judicial
retirement system); employees of legislative committees; community and technical
colleges, college and university employees not in national higher education retirement
programs; judges of district and municipal courts; and employees of local governments.



https://www.drs.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/2023-ACFR-Document.pdf
https://www.drs.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/2023-ACFR-Document.pdf

PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three
separate plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and
Plan 3 is a combination defined benefit/defined contribution plan. Although members
can only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of Plan 2
and Plan 3 are accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3
defined benefit plan may legally be used to pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2
or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of the plan. Therefore, Plan
2/3 is considered a single defined benefit plan for reporting purposes. Plan 3 accounts
for the defined contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3 members.

PERS members who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan T members. Plan
1 is closed to new entrants. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977, and by
February 28, 2002, for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002, for
local government employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercised an option to
transfer their membership to PERS Plan 3.

PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 have the irrevocable
option of choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must
be exercised within 90 days of employment. Employees who fail to choose within 90
days default to PERS Plan 3.

Benefits Provided. PERS plans provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to
eligible members.

PERS Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.
Plan 1 members are eligible for retirement after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60
with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The monthly
benefit is 2 percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of service, capped
at 60 percent. The AFC is the average of the member's 24 highest consecutive service
months.

PERS Plan 1 members retiring from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may receive
actuarially reduced benefits. Plan 1 members may elect to receive an optional cost of
living allowance (COLA) that provides an automatic annual adjustment based on the

Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at 3 percent annually. To offset the

cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced.

PERS Plan 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 2
members are eligible for normal retirement at the age of 65 with five years of service.
The monthly benefit is 2 percent of the AFC per year of service. There is no cap on years



of service credit and a COLA is granted based on the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3
percent annually. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest paid consecutive
months. PERS Plan 2 members have the option to retire early with reduced benefits.

The defined benefit portion of PERS Plan 3 provides members a monthly benefit that is

1 percent of the AFC per year of service. There is no cap on years of service credit. Plan 3
provides the same COLA as Plan 2. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest
paid consecutive months.

PERS Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after 10
years of service; or after five years of service, if 12 months of that service are earned
after age 44. PERS Plan 3 members have the option to retire early with reduced benefits.
PERS members meeting specific eligibility requirements have options available to
enhance their retirement benefits. Some of these options are available to their survivors,
with reduced benefits.

Contributions. PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a
combination of investment earnings and employer and employee contributions.

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution
rates, Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer
contribution rates. The methods used to determine contribution requirements are
established under state statute.

Members in PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 can elect to withdraw total employee contributions
and interest thereon, in lieu of any retirement benefit, upon separation from PERS
covered employment.

Plan Description (TRS). The Legislature established the Teachers' Retirement System
(TRS) in 1938. TRS retirement benefit provisions are established in chapters 41.32 and
41.34 RCW and may be amended only by the Legislature. Eligibility for membership
requires service as a certificated public-school employee working in an instructional,
administrative, or supervisory capacity. TRS is comprised principally of non-state agency
TRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate
plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a
defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component. Although members can
only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and
Plan 3 are accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3
defined benefit plan may legally be used to pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2
or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of the plan. Therefore, Plan




2/3 is considered a single defined benefit plan for reporting purposes. Plan 3 accounts
for the defined contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3 members.

TRS members who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Plan
1 is closed to new entrants. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977, and by June
30, 1996, are Plan 2 members unless they exercised an option to transfer their
membership to Plan 3. TRS members joining the system on or after July 1, 1996, are
members of TRS Plan 3. Legislation passed in 2007 gives TRS members hired on or after
July 1, 2007, 90 days to make an irrevocable choice to become a member of TRS Plan 2
or Plan 3. At the end of 90 days, any member who has not made a choice becomes a
member of Plan 3.

Benefits Provided. TRS plans provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible
members.

TRS Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan
1 members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age
of 60 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The monthly
benefit is 2 percent of the average final compensation (AFC) for each year of service
credit, up to a maximum of 60 percent. The AFC is the total earnable compensation for
the two consecutive highest-paid fiscal years, divided by two.

TRS Plan 1 members may elect to receive an optional cost of living allowance (COLA)
amount based on the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3 percent annually. To offset the
cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced.

TRS Plan 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 2
members are eligible for normal retirement at the age of 65 with five years of service.
The monthly benefit is 2 percent of the AFC per year of service. A COLA is granted based
on the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3 percent annually. The AFC is the average of
the member’s 60 highest paid consecutive months. TRS Plan 2 members have the option
to retire early with reduced benefits.

The defined benefit portion of TRS Plan 3 provides members a monthly benefit that is 1
percent of the AFC per year of service. Plan 3 provides the same COLA as Plan 2. The
AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest paid consecutive months. TRS Plan 3
members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after 10 years of service;
or after five years of service, if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44. TRS
Plan 3 members have the option to retire early with reduced benefits.



TRS members meeting specific eligibility requirements have options available to
enhance their retirement benefits. Some of these options are available to their survivors,
with reduced benefits.

Contributions

PERS and TRS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of
investment earnings and employer and employee contributions. Each biennium, the
state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2
employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. The
methods used to determine contribution requirements are established under state
statute.

Members in PERS or TRS Plan 1 and Plan 2 can elect to withdraw total employee
contributions and interest thereon, in lieu of any retirement benefit, upon separation
from PERS or TRS-covered employment.

The employer contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) and
actual contributions for the year ended June 30, 2024 were as follows:

PEES1 PERS 2/3* TRES1 TRS23*
Contribution Fates at close of FY 24 0.53% 0353% 0.70% 0.70%
A etnal Contributions 247 156 320509 26876 122335

* Plan 23 employer rate includes a component to address the Plan 1 uvnfionded actuadial accmed lisbility

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022,
with the results rolled forward to the June 30, 2023, measurement date using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3.25%
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Mortality rates were based on Society of Actuaries’ Pub. H-2010 Mortality rates, which
vary by member status (that is...active, retiree, or survivor), as our base table. OSA
applied age offsets for each system, as appropriate, to better tailor the mortality rates to
the demographics of each plan. OSA applied the long-term MP-2017 generational
improvement scale, also developed by the Society of Actuaries, to project mortality rates
for every year after the 2010 base table. Mortality rates are applied on a generational
basis, meaning members are assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in
each future year, throughout their lifetime.



The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results
of the 2013-2018 Demographic Experience Study Report and the 2021 Economic
Experience Study. Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are
current as of the 2021 actuarial valuation report.

The Office of the State Actuary (OSA) selected a 7.00 percent long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments using a building-block method. In selecting this
assumption, OSA reviewed the historical experience data, considered the historical
conditions that produced past annual investment returns, and considered Capital
Market Assumptions (CMAs) and simulated expected investment returns provided by
the WSIB. The CMAs contain the following three pieces of information for each class of
assets the WSIB currently invests in: Expected annual return, Standard deviation of the
annual return and, Correlations between the annual returns of each asset class with
every other asset class.

The WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment
returns over various time horizons.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023, are summarized in the
following table:

Target Long-term Fxpected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 2% 1.50%%
Tangible Assats T%% 4.0%
RzalEstate 18% 5.40%%
Hobal Equity 32% 5.00%
Private Equity 23% 2.90%
Total 100 %

The inflation component used to create the above table is 2.20 percent, and represents
the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

There were no material changes in assumptions, benefit terms, or methods for the
reporting period.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00 percent. To
determine the discount rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members.




Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue to be made
at contractually required rates (including PERS Plan 2/3 and TRS Plan 2/3 employers
whose rates include a component for the PERS Plan 1 liability). Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return of 7.00 percent on pension plan investments was
applied to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the net pension liability of the College calculated using the
discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the College’s net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.00 percent)
or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate.

Current Dizeount

1% Decreasze (6.00%) Rate (7.00%)

Penzion Plan 1% Inecreaze (8.00%)

PERS 1 1,383,380 990,340 647,134
PERS 273 2.448.407 (2,251,161) (6.112,153)
TRS 1 22.009 211,546 114 987
TRS 23 661.407 (20.484) (574,852)

Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Pension Liabilities/(Assets). At June 30, 2024, the College reported a total pension

liability of $1,201,886 and a total pension asset of $2,271,645 for its proportionate share

of the net pension liabilities/(assets) as follows:
PensionPlan

Liability /(Asset)

PERS1 = 990,340
PERS 2/3 (2,251,161)
TRS 1 211,546
TRS 2/3 (20,484)

The College’s proportionate share of pension liabilities/(assets) for fiscal years ending
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2023 for each retirement plan are listed below:

Pension Plan 2022 2023 Change

PERS 1 0.038598% 0.043384% 0.004786%
PERS 2/3 0.049028% 0.054924% 0.005896%
TRS 1 0.013577% 0.016703% 0.003126%
TRS 2/3 0.013838% 0.016679% 0.002841%



The College's proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) was based on a projection of
the College’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan to the projected
contributions of all participating state agencies, actuarially determined.

Pension Expense. For the year ended June 30, 2024, the College recognized pension
expense as follows:

Pension Plan Pension Expense

PERS 1 $145,000
PERS 2/3 (276,013)
TRS 1 27,828
TRS 2/3 53,597
Total (49,588)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The following represent the components of the College’s deferred outflows and inflows
of resources as reflected on the Statement of Net Position, for the year ended June 30,
2024:

PEES 1
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Difference between expected and actual
eXperisnce

Difference between expected and actual i 111715
camings of pension plan fvestments ;
Changes of assunptions - -
Changes m College's proportionate share of
pension liabilities

gac:;mtmtms subsequent to the measurement 247156 )

Totals $ 247.156 $ 111,715

PERS 2/3
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Difference between expected and actual
EeXperience

Difference between expected and actual
earnings of pension plan imvestments
Changes of assumptions 045115 205008
Changes m College's proportionate share of
pension liahilites

Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date

Totals 5 2,018,129 5 1,321,367

458559 25,152

- B4E 373

03045 241 844

320309 -




TRS1
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Difference between expected and actual
eXperience

Difference between expected and actual
garnings of pension plan imvestments
Changes of assumptions - -
Changes m College's proportionate share of
pension liabiliies

Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date

- 30,625

26,876 -

Totals 5 26,876 5 30,625

TRS 2/3
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Difference between expected and actual
eXperience

Difference between expected and actual
earnings of pension plan mvestments
Changes of assumptions 162728 16127
Changes in College's proportionate share of

178379 2886

- 08250

23,634 30281
pension liabilities ) )
Contributions subsequent to the measurement 122,325 )
date
Totals s 487,066 S 156,544

The $916,866 reported as deferred outflows of resources represent contributions the
College made subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended
June M: FEES 1 FERS X3 TRS 1 TRS 23
2025 (7 6.006) (417.247) {21,401} (21,715)
20246 ©5,587) (408, 158) 27,055) 37,073)
2027 58,937 671,124 17,291 01,300
2028 41 215144 541 42870
2029 220,898 30,441
Thearzafter {15,510) 83,267
T otal s (111,715) S 176,251 S (20.624) S 208,197

C. College Participation in Plan Administered by the State Board for Community
and Technical Colleges State Board Retirement Plan (SBRP) - Supplemental
Defined Benefits Plans



Plan Description. The State Board Retirement Plan is a privately administered single-
employer defined contribution plans with a supplemental defined benefit plan
component which guarantees a minimum retirement benefit based upon a one-time
calculation at each employee’s retirement date. The supplemental component is
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The College participates in this plan as authorized by
chapter 28B.10 RCW and reports its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
House Bill 1661, effective fiscal year 2021, created separate Supplemental Retirement
Plan (SRP) funds by institution that met the definition of a trust or equivalent
arrangement. As a result, this plan has been reported under GASB 67/68 since FY21.
Prior to that, the SRP was reported under GASB Statement No. 73. As of June 30, 2024,
this plan is being reported with a one year lag between measurement and reporting
date. For FY24 this means the measurement date was June 30, 2023 and the reporting
date was June 30, 2024.

Benefits Provided. The State Board Supplemental Retirement Plans (SRP) provide
retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible members.

As of July 1, 2011, all the Supplemental Retirement Plans were closed to new entrants.

Members are eligible to receive benefits under this plan at age 62 with 10 years of
credited service. The supplemental benefit is a lifetime benefit equal to the amount a
member’s goal income exceeds their assumed income. The monthly goal income is
one-twelfth of 2 percent of the member’s average annual salary multiplied by the
number of years of service (such product not to exceed one-twelfth of fifty percent of
the member’s average annual salary). The member's assumed income is an annuity
benefit the retired member would receive from their defined contribution Retirement
Plan benefit in the first month of retirement had they invested all employer and member
contributions equally between a fixed income and variable income annuity investment.

Plan members have the option to retire early with reduced benefits.
Contributions. Contribution rates for the SBRP (TIAA-CREF), which are based upon age,

are 5%, 7.5% or 10% of salary and are matched by the College. Employee and employer
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2024, were each $949,345.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of January 1, 2023, with the results rolled forward to the June 30, 2023,
measurement date using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:




T SES A NeEs
-».l:\ o,

Salary Increases 3.50%-4.00%
Fixed Income and Varable Income Imvestmeant
Returns® MNIA

*Measurement reflecis actual investment refurns through June 30, 2020

Mortality rates were developed using the Society of Actuaries’ Pub. H-2010 mortality
rates which vary by member status (e.g. active, retiree, or survivor), as the base table.
The Office of the State Actuary applied age offsets as appropriate to better tailor the
mortality rates to the demographics of each plan. OSA applied the long-term MP-2017
generational improvement scale, also developed by the Society of Actuaries, to project
mortality rates for every year after the 2010 base table. Under “generational” mortality,
a member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year
throughout their lifetime.

Most actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023 valuation were based on the
results of the August 2021 Higher Education SRP Experience Study. Additional
assumptions related to the salary growth were based on feedback from financial
administrators of the Higher Education Supplemental Retirement Plans.

Material Assumption Changes. Changes in methods and assumptions that occurred
between the measurement of the June 30, 2022 NPL and the June 30, 2023 NPL are as
follows:

e The valuation date was changed from June 30 to January 1. This corresponds with
the new data file being provided with participant information as of January 1,
2023.

e OSA updated annuity conversion assumptions for the TIAA investments based on
input from TIAA and professional judgment. TIAA contributions and investment
earnings annuity conversion changed from contributions made pre-2002/post-
2001 converted at 6.00 percent/3.25 percent to contributions pre-2006/post-
2005 converted at 7.00/4.00 percent.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was based
on the 202 1Economic experience study for the Washington State retirement plans and
based on the results of the GASB 67/68 required crossover test, or 7.0 percent for the
June 30, 2023, measurement date._

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate. The
following table presents the net pension liability/(asset), calculated using the discount
rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the employers’ total pension liability/(asset) would




be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower ( 6.00

percent) or 1 percentage point higher ( 8.00 percent) than the current rate:
Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(6.00% ) (7.00%) (8.00%)
5 Qoo T3y 5 843033 5 109,750

Pension Liabilities. At June 30, 2024 the College reported a net pension liability of
$843,653 for its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities.

The College's proportionate share of pension liabilities for fiscal years ending June 30,
2022 and June 30, 2023 for the SBRP plan were as follows:

01 2023 Change
SERP 1.50693190% 154825020% 0.04131830%

The College's proportion of the net pension liability as based on the college’s
contributions to the contributions of all community and technical colleges in
Washington State.

Pension Expense. Because the college was changing from measurement and reporting
dates being the same, to measurement report date being a one-year lag from reporting
date, there will be no pension expense recognized in FY24.

Pension expense for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, was ($83,786).

Plan Membership. Membership in the State Board Supplemental Retirement Plan
consisted of the following as of January 1, 2023, the most recent full actuarial valuation
date.

Number of Participating Members

Inactive Members (Or Beneficiaries) Inactive Members Entitled To But ~ Active Total
District Currently Receiving Benefits Not Yet Receiving Benefits Members Members
Centralia College 14 12 62 88

Net Pension Liability/ (Asset). The following table presents the change in net pension
liability/(asset) of the State Board Supplemental Retirement Plan as of June 30, 2023:




Schedule of Development of Net Pension Liability
Cenrralia College
{Dallars in Thouzands) 20213
Total Pension Liability
Sarvice Cost 307534
Intemst 110966
Changes of Benefit Terms -
Diffeence: Batween Fapected and Actoal Experisnce (B9.156)
Changes in Assumptions (176611)
Bensfit Payments 6377y
Change in Proportionate Share of NFL 42 096
Mzt Change i Total Pension Liability (128578)
Total Pension Liabdity - Beginning 1333295
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 1406,717
Plan Fiduciary Net Pos ition
Contnbutions - Emplover 13350
Contabutions - Mamber -
MNet Investment lncome 36552
Bensfit Pavments -
Admintta tive Fxpenze -
Chang= in Proportionats $hae of Plan Azset 15695
Other 2
Mat Change n Plan Fiduveiary Nat Posibon &3.595
Plan Fidvciary Net Position-Beginning 4895470
Plan Fidue airy Net Pozition-Ending (b) 563,065
Plan' s Net Pension Liability Az sef) — Ending (a)-b) B43,652
Covered-Employee Payrall 10,288,751
Mzt Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Perentazge of Coversd-Enploves 20
Payroll

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2023, the State Board Supplemental Retirement Plan reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:




Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflow of

Resources Resources
Differetice BetweenExpected and Actual
Experience 5 330984 5 411,939
Changes of Assumptions 283014 5 649 039
ChangesinColles's prop ortionate share of
pension liability 206443 3 379,729
Differences Between Projected and Actual
Earnings on Plan Investm ents 18,147
Contribntions Subsequent to M easurement Date 34,864
T otal 5 855305 % 1,458,904

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in the fiscal years ended June
30:

State Board Supplemental
Retirement Plan

2025 (163.587)
2026 (125.313)
2027 (119,090)
2028 (228.144)
2029 15.221
Thereafter (17.543)

Note 17. Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description. Per RCW 41.05.065, the Public Employees’ Benefits Board (PEBB),
created within the HCA, is authorized to design benefits and determine the terms and
conditions of employee and retired employee participation and coverage. PEBB
establishes eligibility criteria for both active employees and retirees. Benefits purchased
by PEBB include medical, dental, life, and long-term disability.

The relationship between the PEBB OPEB plan and its member employers, their
employees, and retirees is not formalized in a contract or plan document. Rather, the
benefits are provided in accordance with a substantive plan in effect at the time of each
valuation. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the
employers and plan members. This understanding is based on communications between
the HCA, employers and plan members, and the historical pattern of practice with
regard to the sharing of benefit costs. The understanding by the employer and plan
members is that there is no contractual obligation to continue the substantive plan as
an employee benefit on an ongoing basis. Nevertheless, the actuarial assumptions used



in valuations presented in this footnote assume that his substantive plan will be carried
forward into the future.

The PEBB OPEB plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. In the state ACFR the plan is
reported in governmental funds using the modified accrual basis and the current
financial resources measurement focus. For all proprietary and fiduciary funds, the OPEB
plan is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. The PEBB OPEB plan has no assets and does not issue a publicly available
financial report.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. The PEBB OPEB plan is available to employees
who elect to continue coverage and pay the administratively established premiums at
the time they retire under the provisions of the retirement system to which they belong.
Retirees’ access to the PEBB plan depends on the retirement eligibility of their respective
retirement systems. Membership in the PEBB plan for the College consisted of the

following:
Summary of Plan Particip ants
As of June 30, 2023

A ctive Emplovess® 203
Reatires: Feceiving B enafits ¥4 124
Retiress INot Receiving B ene fits +++ na
Total Active Emplovess and Petirees 417

*Peflects active emgplowvess elizihle for PEEE program participation as of June 30, 2023,
**Headoountzs excide spouses of etir=es that are participating in a PEEE program as a

dependant.
*+4HCA doesdthave data on this grovpand O5A doeso't have the methodolosy to
reasomably estimate it. For fiscal vear 2024, w2 have no options, but to report this amount

a3 not availabls.

Benefits Provided. Per RCW 41.05.022, retirees who are not yet eligible for Medicare
benefits may continue participation in the state’s non-Medicare community-rated health
insurance risk pool on a self-pay basis. Retirees in the non-Medicare risk pool receive an
implicit subsidy. The implicit subsidy exists because retired members pay a premium
based on a claims experience for active employees and other non-Medicare retirees. The
subsidy is valued using the difference between the age-based claims costs and the
premium.

Retirees who are enrolled in both Parts A and B of Medicare may participate in the
state’s Medicare community-rated health insurance risk pool. Medicare retirees receive
an explicit subsidy in the form of reduced premiums. Annually, the HCA administrator
recommends an amount for the next calendar year’s explicit subsidy for inclusion in the
Governor's budget. The final amount is approved by the state Legislature. In calendar



year 2024 the explicit subsidy was $183 per member per month and it will remain $183
per member per month in calendar year 2025.

Contribution Information. Administrative costs as well as implicit and explicit subsidies
are funded by required contributions (RCW 41.05.050) from participating employers. The
subsidies provide monetary assistance for medical benefits.

Contributions are set each biennium as part of the budget process. The benefits are
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The estimated monthly cost for PEBB benefits for each active employee (average across

all plans and tiers) is as follows (expressed in dollars):
Reguired Preminm®

Medical 5 1,251
Deental A |
Life 4
Long-term Disability 2

Total 1,338
Emgplover contribution 1,156
Emploves contribution 182

Total 5 1.338

*Par 2022 PEBB Financial Projection Model version 7.0. Per capita cost
baszd on subseribers; melvdes non-Medicare rek pool only. Fizures based
on CY2023 which includes projectad clatms cost at the time of this
reporting .

For information on the results of an actuarial valuation of the employer provided
subsidies associated with the PEBB plan, refer to:
http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx

Total OPEB Liability

As of June 30, 2024, the state reported a total OPEB liability of $4.374 billion. The
College's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability is $9,495,173. This liability was
determined based on a measurement date of June 30, 2023.

Actuarial Assumptions. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations. The total OPEB liability was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified:


http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx

Inflation Rate 235%
Projected Salary Changes 3.25% Plus Service-Based Salary Increanas

Initial trend rate ranges from 2-11%, reaching an ultimate rats

Health Care Trend Rates* of approximately 3.8 in 2080.

Pozt-Retirement Participation Percentage 60%

Percentage with Spouze Coverage 43%

*For additional datail on ths health care trend rates, pleass sse the Office of the State Actvary™s 2023 Public
Employess® Benefits Board Other Postemplovment Bensefits Actuarial Valvations Feport.

In projecting the growth of the explicit subsidy, after 2022 when the cap is $183, it is
assumed to grow at the health care trend rates. The Legislature determines the value of
the cap and no future increases are guaranteed; however, based on historical growth
patterns, future increases to the cap are assumed.

Mortality rates were developed using the Society of Actuaries’ Pub.H-2010 mortality
rates which vary by member status (e.g. active, retiree, or survivor) as the base table. The
Office of the State Actuary applied age offsets for each system, as appropriate, to better
tailor the mortality rates to the demographics of each plan. OSA applied the long-term
MP-2017 generational improvement scale, also developed by the Society of Actuaries,
to project mortality rates for every year after the 2010 base table. Under “"generational”
mortality, a member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each
future year, throughout their lifetime.

Most demographic actuarial assumptions, including mortality and when members are
expected to terminate and retire, were based on the results of the 2073-2078
Demographic Experience Study Report. The post-retirement participation percentage and
percentage with spouse coverage, were reviewed in 2017. Economic assumptions,
including inflation and salary increases, were based on the results of the 2079 Report on
Financial Condition and Economic Experience Study.

Actuarial Methodology. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following
methodologies:

Actuarial Valuation Drate 65072022
Actuarial AMeasure ment Date §.50/2023
Actuarial Cost Ae thod Entry Age
The recognition period for the exp erience and szsomption changes & 9 years.
Amortiration Method Thiz & equal to the sverags sxpected remaining service lives of all active and

inactive membears .

Aszzet Valuation Alethod W/A -No Aszats

The actuarial methodology used to determine the transactions subsequent to the
measurement date were as follows:



Subsidy amounts are calculated at subscriber level, based on benefit plan

and enrollment tier selected, then summed over entire population to

include Medicare retirees from the State, Higher Education, K-12 and

Political Subdivision groups.

Subsidy amounts are calculated using the implicit subsidy rate®

Tmplicit Medicare Subsidy (difference between theoretical early retiree rates and composite rates®*
for non-Medicare risk pool) and the enrollment counts for early retirees

*early retirees assumed to be 58% more expensive the non-Medicare risk pool as a whole on 2 per adult

unit basis.

**rcalculated across non-Medicare risk pool for both selfdnsured and fullv-insured plans using the PEBB

Financial Projection Model (PFPM).

Explicit Medicare Subsidy

A retiree subsidy rate of $66.16 per member per month, used to calculate the
transactions subsequent to the measurement date, is equal to the total subsidies
received by current retirees (both explicit and implicit), divided by the number of current
active subscribers. This amount is then allocated to the agency level based on the active,
health care eligible employee headcount of each agency as of the measurement date.

Discount Rate. Since OPEB benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the discount
rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was set equal to the Bond Buyer General
Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, or 3.54 percent for the June 30, 2022
measurement date and 3.65 percent for the June 30, 2023 measurement date.

Additional detail on assumptions and methods can be found on OSA’s website:
http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx

Changes in Total OPEB Liability
As of June 30, 2024, components of the calculation of total OPEB liability determined in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 75 for the College are represented in the

following table:
Centralia College

Proportionate Share (%) 0.2170724118%
Service Cost 5 332,645
Interest Cost 334144
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience -

Changes in A ssumptions (160,681)
Changes of Benafit Terms -
Benafit Payments (232,743)
Changes in Proportionate Share 376200
Othar -
Met Change in Total OPEE Liability 640 664
Total OPEE Liahility - Beginning 8,845 509

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 5 9,495,173



http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx

Sensitivity of the Total Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following
represents the total OPEB liability of the College, calculated using the discount rate of
3.65 percent as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.65 percent) or 1 percentage point

higher (4.65 percent) than the current rate:
Discount Rate Sensitivity

Current Discount
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
5 11109932 5§ 04935173 § 8.196.223

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates. The
following represents the total OPEB liability of the College, calculated using the health
care trend rates range of 2-11 percent reaching an ultimate range of 3.8 percent, as well
as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using health care trend
rates that are 1 percentage point lower (1-10 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (3-

12 percent) than the current rate:
Health Care Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity

Current health
1% Decreaze care cost trend rate 1% Increasze

5 1978.830 5 0405173 § 11446 344

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ending June 30, 2024, the College will recognize OPEB expense of
($456,289). OPEB expense consists of the following elements:

Centralia College

Proportionate Share (%) 0217072411 8%
Service Cost 5 332,645
Interast Cost 334144

Amortization of Differences Between Expected and

Actoal Expeniance 3,559
Amortization of Changes in Assumptions (1,018,383)
Changes of Benefit Terms -
Amortization of Changes in Proportion (110,254)
Other Changes to Net Position -
Total OPEB Expenze 5 (456,289}

As of June 30, 2024, the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources for the
College are as follows:



Centralia College

Proportionate Share (%) 0.2170724118%

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Rezources Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Diffarance batweaen sxpected and actnal sxperiencs 5 144 180 3 281,970
Changes in azssumptions 616 998 5,688 962
Tranzactions subsaguent to the measurement dats 238 267 -
Changes in proportion 1,135 252 1223 862
Total Deferred Outflows/Inflows s 1,135,697 § 71947094

Amounts reported as deferred outflow of resources related to OPEB resulting from
transactions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2025. Amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized as OPEB expense in subsequent years for the College as follows:

Proportionate Share (%) 0.2170724118%
2025 (1,123 078)
2026 (1,123.074)
2027 (B23_30G)
2028 (428 257
202e (633.541)
Thearsafter (1,095 2035)

[EL I "o F R e )

The change in the College's proportionate share of OPEB liability and deferred inflows
and deferred outflows of resources based on measurement date are representing in the
following table:

Proportionate Share (%) 20112 0.2082147341%
Proportionate Share (%) 2013 0.2170724118%
Total OPEE Luability - Ending 2022 5 8,845 500
Total OPEE Liability - Beg 2023 (chg in prop) 9221808
Total OPEE Liability Change in Proportion 376200
Total Deferred Inflowz/Outflows - 2022 (che in prop) (3,301 202)
Total Deferred Inflows/Outflows - 2023 (chg in prop) (3,820,133
Total Deferred Inflows/Outflows Change in Proportion (237.861)
Total Change in Proportion 3 614,160

Note 18. Operating Expenses by Program
In the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, operating
expenses are displayed by natural classifications, such as salaries, benefits, and supplies.



The table below summarizes operating expenses by program or function such as
instruction, research, and academic support. The following table lists operating expenses

by program for the year ending June 30, 2024.
Expenses by Functional Classification

Instruction 5 12.788.672
Academic Support Services 3.511.887
Student Services 0173261
Institutional Support 7138500
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 3233100
Scholarships and Other Student Financial Aid 4045642
Auxiliary enterprises 2376549
Depreciation and Amortization 3101125

Total operating expenses 3 46,268,754

Note 19. Related-Party Transactions

Based on their inter-relationship, the College and the Foundation have a number of
transactions with each other during the course of the year. Under a formal agreement
between the College and Foundation, the College provides printing, postage, office
space, staff services and supplies, which the value totaled a net of $221,866 for 2024,
while the Foundation provides fundraising and financial services.

The Foundation distributed approximately $574,401 to the College for restricted and
unrestricted purposes in 2024. Inter-entity transactions and balances between the
College and Foundation are not eliminated for financial statement presentation
purposes.

Note 20. Commitments and Contingencies

The College has commitments of $1.6 million for the Teacher Education and Family
Development (TEFD) building project. This building is primarily State capital project
funded but will require local funds to complete the project. In addition, the College is
partnering with the Foundation in remodeling the Silver Street apartment

building. Approximately $1.6 million of local funds have been committed to this
project.

The College is engaged in various legal actions in the ordinary course of business.
Management does not believe the ultimate outcome of these actions will have a
material adverse effect on the financial statement.

Schedule of Required Supplementary Information
Pension Plan Information



Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedules of Centralia College’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1

Measurement Date of June 30

Schedule of Centralia College's Share of the Net Pension Liability

College’s

proportion of the

College
proportionate

College’s
proportionate
share of the net
pension liability as

Plan’s fiduciary net
position as a
percentage of the

Fizcal net pension share of the net College covered a percentage of its total pension
Year liability pension liability payroll covered payroll liability
2014 0.047578% S 2,144,887 S 4 768,619 50.25% 51.19%
2015 0.041307% S 2.160,741 S 4 337,289 49.82% 59.10%
2016 0.041476% S 2227448 5 4 607,963 48.34% 57.08%
2017 0.041015% S 1945,195 S 4 594 118 39.77% B1.24%
2018 0.037051% S 1654710 S 4 802,607 34.45% 63.27%
2019 0.040759% S 1567,332 S 5,915,133 26.50% 67.12%
2020 0.043075% S 1520,780 S B,593,770 23.06% BE.54%
2011 0.039488% S 482,245 5 5,950,150 B.10% BE.74%
2022 0.038598% S 1074713 S 6,238,554 17.23% 76.56%
2023 0.043384% S 990,344 5 7,638,896 12 96% 80.16%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.




Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedule of Centralia College’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Centralia College's Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 2/3

Measurement Date of June 30

College’s

proporti onate
College share of the net  Plan's fiduciary
College’s proporti onate pension liability net position as a
proportion of the  share of the net [asset) as a percentage of the
Fiscal net pension  pension liability College covered percentage of its total pension
Year liability [aszzer) payroll covered payroll liability
2014 0.045865% 5 527,087 5 3,525,044 23.62% 53.25%
2015 0.045305% 5 1618774 5 4,021,132 40, 26% 25 20%%
206 0. Me496% 5 2341053 5 4,338 153 L3.56% a5 22%
27 077 5 1,658 579 5 4 681 155 35.44% S50.57%
2018 0.0455859% 5 T8 380 5 4,730,252 16.46% 55.77%
2015 0.051510% 5 500,338 5 5,238,562 2.57% 57.77%
2020 0.054326% 5 694,795 5 6,512 238 1. 67%% S7.22%
2021 0.048881% S (4,865.336) 5 5,261,745 -23.07% 120 25%
2022 0.049028% 5 (1,818343) 5 6,187, 223 -25 35% 106.73%
2023 0.054924% 5 (2,251,162) 5 7,585,000 -25 62% 107 .02%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.




Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedule of Centralia College’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Centralia College's Share of the Net Pension Liability
Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 1

Measurement Date of June 30

College's
proportionate

share of the net  Plan’s fiduciary

College’s College pension liability net positionas a

proportion of the proportionate as a percentage percentage of the

Fiscal net pension  share of the net  College covered of its covered total pension
Year liability pension liability payroll payroll liability
2014 0.013515% S 398,619 S 523,662 76.12% 68.77%
2015 0.012868% 5 407,677 S 545,996 74.53% 65.70%
2016 0.012498% 5 426,711 5 570,355 T4.81% 62.07%
2017 0.013945% 5 421,594 5 707,857 59.56% 65.58%
2018 0.016239% S 474,274 S 795,053 59.65% 66.52%
2019 0.017628% 5 436,434 S 1,112,604 39.23% 70.37%
2020 0.018576% 5 447,456 § 1,263,703 35.41% 70.55%
2021 0.014199% 5 95,601 S 1,074,354 8.90%% 91.41%
2022 0.013577% S 258,211 S 1,110,179 23.26% 78.24%
2023 0.016703% S 211,546 5 1,399,915 15.11% 85.09%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.




Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedule of Centralia College’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Centralia College's Share of the Net Pension Liability
Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 2/3

Measurement Date of June 30

College's

proportionate
College share of the net  Plan's fiduciary
College’s proportionate pension liability  net position as a
proportion of the  share of the net (asset) as a percentage of the
Fiscal net pension  pension liability College covered percentage of its total pension
Year liability (asset) payroll covered payroll liability
2014 0.010603% S 34,247 S 452,004 7.58% 96.81%
2015 0.010172% S 85,832 5§ 475,173 18.0685% 92 .48%
2015 0.010351% S 142,150 S 513,872 27.66% BB .72%
2017 0.011616% S 107,209 S 637,270 16.82% 93.14%
2018 0.013208% S 59,451 S 717,901 B.28% 96.88%
2019 0.015496% S 93,368 S 1,038,432 B.99% 96.36%
2020 0.016528% S 253,867 S 1,124 206 21.43% 91.72%
2021 0.013754% S (378,071} S 1,057,416 -35.75% 113.7254
2022 0.013838% S (27,231) S 1,110,179 -2.45% 100 8884
2023 0.016679% 5 (20,485) S 1,395,915 -1.46% 1004954

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.




Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedules of Contributions

Schedule of Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
Contributions
in relation to
the Contributions
Contractually Contractually Contribution as a
Fiscal Required Required deficiency percentage of
Year Contributions Contributions {excess) Covered payroll covered payroll
2015 S 189,844 5 189,844 S - S 4,337,289 4.38%
2016 S 235,208 S 235,208 S - S 4,607,973 5.10%
2017 5 246,716 5 246,716 5 - 5 4,894,118 5.04%
2018 s 246,986 S 246986 5 - % 4,802,607 5.14%
2019 s 292,803 5 292,803 5 - % 5915133 4.95%
2020 s 311,606 5 311,606 5 - % 6,593,770 4.73%
2021 5 295,871 S 295,871 S - 5 5,950,150 4.97%
2022 5 235,196 5 235,196 S - S 6,238,554 3.77%
2023 5 295,766 5 295,766 5 - % 7,638,896 3.87%
2024 5 247,156 5 247,156 5 - 5 8243558 3.00%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.



Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedules of Contributions

Schedule of Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 2/3
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
Contributions
in relation to
the
Contractually Contractually Contribution Contributions as
Fiscal Required Required deficiency Covered a percentage of
Year  Contributions Contributions {excess) payroll covered payroll
2015 S 201,813 S 201,813 S - $ 4,021,139 5.02%
2016 5 268419 5 268,413 5 -5 4,338,193 6.159%
2017 S 291,635 S 291,635 S - S 4,681,195 6.23%
2018 5 354,295 S 354,295 S - 54,730,298 7.49%
2019 5 421,220 5 421,220 S - 5 5,838,568 1.21%
2020 S 501,573 S 501,573 S - $ 6,512,238 1.70%
2021 S 464,251 S 464,251 S - $ 5,861,745 1.92%
2022 5 394,204 5 394,204 5 - 56,187,223 6.37%
2023 S 482,408 S 482,408 S - S 7,585,010 6.36%
2024 5 520,509 S 520,508 S - 5 8,184,079 6.36%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.



Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedules of Contributions

Schedule of Contributions
Teachers' Retirement 5ystem (TRS) Plan 1
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
Contributions
in relation to
the
Contractually Contractually Contribution Contributions as
Fizcal Regquired Required deficiency Covered a percentage of
Year Contributions Contributions [exncess) payroll covered payroll
2015 % 28796 & 28,796 & - % 545995 5.26%
2016 S 30,313 5 30,313 % - % 570,355 5.31%
2017 % 48,801 % 48801 & - % 707,857 £.80%
2018 S 62,308 &% 62,308 5 - 5 795053 7.84%
2019 & B7.881 & B7,881 & - % 1112604 7.90%
2020 % 97,449 % 97,449 & - % 1763703 7.71%
2021 S 80,763 & 80,763 5 - % 1,074,354 7.52%
2022 5 59,817 & 69,817 5 - % 1110179 5.29%
2023 S 90,138 5 90,138 5 - 5 1,399,915 6.44%
2024 % 26,876 & 26,276 & - % 1517794 1.77%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.




Cost Sharing Employer Plans
Schedules of Contributions

Schedul e of Contributions

Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 2/3
Fiscal Year Ended June 30

Contributions
in relation to

the Contributions
Contractually Contractually Contribution as a

Fiscal Required Required deficiency Covered percentage of

Year Contributions Contributions {excess) payroll covered payroll
2015 § 27,033 $ 27,033 $ -5 475,173 5.69%
2016 S 41,457 S 41,457 S - 8 513,872 B.O7%
20107 5 42,800 S 42,800 5 -5 637,270 6.72%
2018 5 55,235 S 55,235 5 -5 717,901 7.69%
2019 5 81,334 § 81,334 5 - 5 1,033432 7.83%
2020 5 96,148 § 96,148 - 5 1,184,306 8.12%
2021 5 86,180 S 26,180 & - § 1,057416 B8.15%
2022 5 89,460 § 89,460 & - 5 110179 B.06%
2023 § 112,633 § 112,633 § - $§ 1,399,915 8.05%
2024 § 122,325 § 122,325 § - $ 1517,794 8.06%

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.



State Board Supplemental Defined Benefit Plans

S he dule of Changes inthe Ner Pention Linbiliny and Eelared Entios

Ceniralia Colle ge
Measurement date of June 3, 2025

jexpressed in thowsands )

AN1T 2N H 2N = LN 22 LY LS
Total Peo:ion Linbiliny
Service Uost = wrinsr & 5 9% & T - LYHE & TS & LT & i), T34
Int erest ST LT SR T e A = Fin SANF 1 THL*wlx
Changes of benefit temns - - - - - - -
Lifferences hetween expected and actual expenence {430, T30 {(17rran 1255 168, 24 {4461,755) LER AL (B RE Y]
Changes of ass wnng itk ns | 1Kl #=53) i, 1 5100 21 5% 48 535 {HAS SHIN TR H S {1 =11
Benefit Pay ments {15,349 {2213 {31 A46T) [E TIELL]] { 3H 45,4345 (M 3TT)
LChange i Proporinate Share of MEL LLE 1588 A1THAN { AN, TG [R=Aira ZH N
Lther {331} - - - - 5 -
Ner Change in Total Pension Linbilicy (396,231) (127,741) 420 683 1050578 % (1904 460) 3 488 636 3 (142.273)
I'oial Penson Lability - Beg maimg 25517 1 s 17, s 1 A% 545 1.5 1L 25H 2 Al M 1 {05, 355 1, 35 5
Total PeosionLiability - Ending {a) T1LEITIEF T1489545 21910238 FS 2950819 3 L6358 3 1545805 3 1403722
Plmn Fiducinry Net Posidon**
Lo et b i s - kver n'a na n'a na % s % 12553 % 135, 354N
Lomnbatens - Memiesr & m'a & m'a
Met Invest ment bncomes m'a m'a m'a m'a 1 20 Al THA iy, 352
Henefit Pay menits n'a n'a n'a w'a -
Admnin e tratny e kpenc s & m'a & m'a -
{iher T & s T & wa {14) (3]
LChange In Froponicnats Share of Plan Azzets 'a m'a Th' & ' a
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Poziton ] 136,565 3 13323 3 4% 500
Plan Fiduciary Met Pos i s -Heginam mg il R e H 5 510 177
Plan Fidueairy Net Posidon-Ending (b 2 496854 3 F10177 3 S60,07T
Flm's Net P ension Liability { Az=et) — Ending {a)-(b) = 359505 % 10835818 3 843,643
Fiduciary net pocition as a % of torsl pension Habilin: (B a) 47.03% 33 e L L
Cowered Payrall & 9611670 S5 9587771 5 10.288.751
Net peosion Linbility ax a %% ofc owvered pavroll 5. 8204 14 79045 B 2004

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.



Schednle of Emplover Contributions
State Board Supplemental Retirement Flan
Centralin Colleze
Fizcal Year Ended June 30, 2023

=1 TR ] W4

S tztubority determ ned contribotions : 12,485 % 12477 % 15,373 § 14523
Actuzl contributions in rebtion o the above 11,839 133533 13,245 14 3585
Contribution defic ency (excess) z (G 3 135 § 150 § [158Y
Cirered Payrod P OQEILET F 0 OS58T7T71 F O102BRETS1 R1LITLXDG
Contribution 25 2 % of covered pavroll 0132 0 13% 0 13% 0.13%

MIFIES: These schedeks will be beill pospecinvely mnnl they contam 10 yeas of data

' e O 5 OO BOT 3VOiah ke

"lhe PPMS fab ke oribe S 00 payvml was pel gpdated by Suie Boamd for @e new HERP

Ted rale WEKH EsElied W an ovefpavment | e chamge was made (o he sVsiciand kEss Wl s

collecied m FYIl o cover Sl ove Payment

State Board Supplemental Defined Benefit Plans

The State Board Supplemental Retirement Plans are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.
State Board makes direct payments to qualifying retirees when the retirement benefits
provided by the fund sponsors do not meet the goals, no assets are accumulated in
trusts or equivalent arrangements. Potential factors that may significantly affect trends
in amounts reported include changes to the discount rate, salary growth and the
variable income investment return.

Effective fiscal year 2021, House Bill 1661 created dedicated funds to pay SRP benefits
that mimic the trust arrangement for the rest of the state retirement systems. As a result,
the plan, previously reported under GASB Statement No. 73 is now being reported
under GASB Statement No. 68. In FY24 reporting for the SBRP plan changed a one-year
lab between measurement and reporting.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions contains actual amounts, while the notes report
contributions as a proportionate share of plan total contributions.



Other Postemployment Benefits Information

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEE Liability and Related Ratios
Measurement Date of June 30 2024
Total OPEB Lisbility 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Service cost § 365 5 62520 S AMSEME S SM0ET S 2297 S 6%1M S5 8TIONS
Tnterest cost 34144 302765 280427 450815 452185 471710 409347
Difference between expected and actual experience (209.836) - (70462) 430579 -
Changes inassumptions (160680 (062487 119314 203080 80105 (GOBIM) (L9980
Changes inbenefit terms - - - -
Benefit paymests (B2743) 0411 QBT QIS QSR (1922 QU0
Chanses in proportionate share 376200 403134 (10098(8)  (I78114) 201403 (301.906) .
Other ) ) ]
Net Changes in Total OPEB Lisbility s siogsd S ADEBDS (64363 S 3L S 1800238 |5 (L8164%8) § (RIS
Total OPER Lisbility - B eginning S 5845500 § 12081846 5 13246214 5 DEMSIS S 1097277 S 12890763 5 1381014
Total OPER Lisbility - Ending § 0405173 § §845300 § 12081846 § 13246214 § DDMSIS § 10927 § 1180076
College's proportion of the Total OPEB Liability (%) 0T0T41% 0201473% 02005MET% 02187570% 02210680% 021608T2%  0.22126000%)
Cov ered-employee payroll § 20867653 S 10159680 § 16738546 § 16360248 § 15636487 § 140403507 § 1473754
Total OPER Lisbility as a percentage of cov ered- 45.501851%  46167306% TTII6N3%  TSI6HT6IG  S2073023%  TIATITTL  §A6R8T
emplovee pavroll

Note: These schedules will be built prospectively until they contain 10 years of data.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The Public Employee's Benefits Board (PEBB) OPEB plan does not have assets in trusts or equivalent arrangements and is
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. Potential factors that may significantly affect trends in amounts reported include
changes to the discount rate, health care trend rates, salary projections, and participation percentages.
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